
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
September 07, 2016 1:30 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Agendas are subject to amendment through 

5:00pm on the day prior to City Council Meetings 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - Pastor Kevin Craig of Apopka Assembly of God 
PLEDGE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council Workshop July 19, 2016. 
2. City Council Workshop July 20, 2016 
3. City Council meeting August 17, 2016. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Employee Recognition: 

 Five Year Service Award – Samarie Koller – Police/Communications 
 Five Year Service Award – Angela Rozier – Police/Communications 
 Ten Year Service Award – Dennis Carter, Sr – Public Services/Streets 
 Ten Year Service Award – Dina Cedillo – Police/Support Services 
 Fifteen Year Service Award – Charles Whitehead – Public Services/Water Plant 
 Twenty Year Service Award – Gregory Conant – Recreation/Grounds – Athletic Complex 

 
Public Comment Period:  
The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker  will  have  four minutes to  give  remarks,  regardless  of  the  number  of  items  addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 
2016-16 for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve the ranking of firms and authorize the negotiation of a contract for the Land Development Code update. 
2. Authorize a Door-to-Door Solicitation permit for Andrus Albi, E.H. Engelmeier Roofing & Sheet Metal Co., Inc. 

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Approve the first amendment to the Marden Road Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement.  Glenn A. Irby 
2. Preliminary Development Plan – Binion Reserve Subdivision David Moon 
3. Redevelopment Plan/Final Development Plan (Major Site Plan) – Piedmont Plaza - Quasi-Judicial David Moon 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance No. 2513 – First Reading – Annexation - Legislative  Rogers Beckett 
2. Ordinance No. 2514 – First Reading – Annexation - Legislative  Rogers Beckett 
3. Ordinance No. 2515 – First Reading – Annexation - Legislative  Rogers Beckett 
4. Ordinance No. 2516 – First Reading – Annexation - Legislative  Rogers Beckett 
5. Ordinance No. 2517 – First Reading – Annexation - Legislative  Rogers Beckett 
6. Ordinance No. 2503 – First Reading – Land Development Code – Ex Parte Contact – Legislative Mark Reggentin 
7. Ordinance No. 2504 – First Reading – Land Development Code – Building Heights – Legislative Mark Reggentin 
8. Ordinance No. 2509 – First Reading - Code of Ordinances, “Peddlers and Solicitors” - Legislative Mark Reggentin 
9. Ordinance No. 2510 – First Reading – Code of Ordinances, “Business Tax Receipts” – Legislative Mark Reggentin 
10. Ordinance No. 2511 – First Reading - Code of Ordinances, “Vehicles for Hire.” – Legislative  Mark Reggentin 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

1. Youth Council Proposal.  Commissioner Becker 

1



  
 

 
MAYOR’S REPORT 

1. Request concerning Junior Bowling Olympian.  
 
NOT REQUIRING ACTION 

1. Apopka Youth Works Program Stats.  Glenn A. Irby 
2. Thank you letter from Wheatley Elementary for the supplies received from the Apopka School Supply Drive.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

September 9, 2016 7:00pm – 9:00pm Movie in the Park [Zootopia] – Northwest Recreation Complex  

September 13, 2016 5:30pm – 6:00pm Planning Commission Meeting 

September 14, 2016 5:05pm – 6:30pm Council Budget Hearing 

September 21, 2016         7:00pm – Council Meeting 

September 26, 2016 10:00am – 11:00am Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

September 28, 2016 5:05pm – 6:00pm Council Budget Hearing 

October 5, 2016         1:30pm –  Council Meeting 

October 6, 2016 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

October 7, 2016 7:00pm – 9:00pm Movie in the Park [TBD] – Northwest Recreation Complex  

October 11, 2016 5:30pm – 6:00pm Planning Commission Meeting 

October 19, 2016         7:00pm –  Council Meeting 

October 24, 2016 10:00am – 11:00am Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

October 29, 2016 5:00pm – 9:00pm Halloween in the Park – Kit Land Nelson Park 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. City Council Workshop July 19, 2016. 
  

3



CITY OF APOPKA 
 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 19, 2016, at 1:00 p.m., in the City 

of Apopka Council Chambers. 

 

PRESENT:     Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane 

Velazquez Commissioner 

Kyle Becker Commissioner 

Doug Bankson Glenn Irby, 

City Administrator Pam 

Barclay, Finance Director 

 

PRESS PRESENT:   John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

Bethany Rodgers, Orlando Sentinel Dale 

Fenwick, The Apopka Voice 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mayor Kilsheimer called the Budget 

Workshop to order at 1:00 p.m. and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was the first budget workshop for Fiscal Year 2017. He advised 

there will be budget workshops held for the next couple of weeks to review the proposed budget. 

There will be two public hearings held in September. The presented proposed budget is a 

balanced budget that does not raise the millage rate for next year. He announced that he has told 

the department heads not to hold back when presenting their department needs for the proposed 

budget. He pointed out that 54 additional employees have been requested and only 18 have 

been left in, 12 of which are firefighters for the new fire station. He stated the staff continues to 

do more with less, despite the fact that this year’s budget tops $100 million. He declared that is 

reflection of the fact that we are a growing community. He said they will try to cover the general 

departments in today’s workshop. However, starting off will be a presentation on the UCF 

Incubation Program. 

 

Presentation – UCF Business Incubation Program 
 

Gordon Hogan, Director of the UCF Business Incubation Program, said the incubation program 

started 17 years ago and has been very interesting, growing faster than they thought it would. He 

stated about half of the companies are technology and the other half various types of businesses. 

This was initially created to grow technology companies, but over time they received many 

requests in different areas. He said Apopka is the most recent and there currently are 125 

companies at seven different locations. He stated it normally takes five years for a company to 

become stable. He advised a study done by the National Incubation Association a few years ago 

found that a little over 80% of companies stay in the location where they were incubated. 

 

Rick Parks, Site Manager, Apopka, said the Apopka Incubator was launched in April 2012 as a 

partnership between UCF and the City of Apopka. He reported the Apopka incubator today has 

seven  client  companies,  one  soft  landing  company,  and  two  pre-incubation  companies.  He
4



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 19, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 

explained a soft landing company is designed for companies that want to move into the Central 

Florida market from outside. They provide space, resources, and networking to help facilitate 

their moving into the area. Two new client companies will be added by the end of the third 

quarter of 2016. Two of the companies that have graduated are still in business. In addition, 

seven companies have exited the program, and four are still in business. 

 

Pam Barclay, Finance Director, stated this is a workbook and is a work in progress. If adding 

anything, be mindful that revenues will have to be found to fund those items. She will be keeping 

a tally sheet of everything to be added. She pointed out an error in the budget in brief, the skate 

part was put in at $750,000 and the splash pad at $200,000. In essence, the skate park is slated 

for $300,000 and the splash pad $750,000. She provided a corrected page to be replaced with this 

correction. She explained the process, stating the work sheets were sent out to all of the 

departments in the middle of March, requesting these be returned the middle of April. Upon 

receipt, she pulled them into a workbook and Mayor Kilsheimer, Glenn Irby, and herself met 

with each department head and their higher level staff to discuss their requests line by line. 

Following cuts, and revenues coming in from the state, she forecasts what those revenues are 

expected to be and they work to balance the budget. She advised more than $14 million in 

capital was requested and they had to cut that back to $5 million. The requested positions were 

cut back to 18 new positions. She reiterated, if adding any positions back, to be mindful, they 

will need to cut some other area, or find revenues to add. She pointed out if increasing the 

millage by .5 this will provide roughly an additional $1.2 million. There is a millage work 

page that shows what the increases will provide. She advised in going through the revenues, 

they were relatively flat, stating we did have an increase in taxes which was approximately 

9.5%. This reflects the increase in the tax base. She affirmed with using $2.6 million of 

reserves, our ratio of fund balance to expenditures is maintained at 31%. The Governmental 

Financial Officers Association recommends it be kept at 18% to 20%. She advised that staff 

received their budget workbooks at the same time Council received them and were not aware 

of all the cuts until receiving the workbooks. She pointed out that page nine of the workbook 

breaks down the dollar and how it is distributed from the General Fund. The actual increase in 

tax base generated more than $700,000 in tax revenue. She advised the use of reserves is not 

covering any operational costs, it is covering capital costs. She affirmed the time has come that 

obsolete vehicles are in need of replacement and obsolete technology requires replacement. 

 

Commissioner Bankson expressed concern regarding the reserves and stated we need a plan to 

replenish the reserves. He also referenced the $600,000 per year being added to the debt load and 

concerns with financing. 

 

Ms. Barclay said the thought behind financing a $50,000 vehicle is to finance over five years 

which is the useful life. This cost is being amortized over the five years, so it is a sustainable 

cost. Other vehicles such as street sweepers and sanitation trucks are much more expensive and 

have a longer life. She affirmed financing is at a very low rate. 

 

Discussion was held regarding the building of Fire Stations five and six and keeping the ISO 

rating, as well as the associated costs of personnel, equipment, and furnishings. Further 

discussion ensued regarding new growth supporting itself through impact fees. 

5



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 19, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 

MAYOR’S OFFICE 

 

The Mayor’s office budget was reviewed and discussed. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer pointed out the Mayor’s office had the requested position of Chief of Staff cut 

from the budget. He stated it is difficult to juggle all of the routine duties as well as work in all of 

the extra requests that come through. He would like to have a person working in the Mayor’s 

office on a department head level. 

 

It was determined to possibly revisit page 28. Item 12 on page 33 in the amount of $150 is to be 

cut. Discussion was held regarding page 34, Items 2 and 3; Orlando Economic Development 

Commission in the amount of $10,000 and Apopka Area Chamber of Commerce Executive 

Trustee Program in the amount of $7,500. Discussion ensued regarding whether it should be a 

city representative rather than a person from the chamber representing the city on the Orlando 

EDC Board while Community Development Director Mark Reggentin represents the City on the 

Chamber’s Board of Directors, Laura Heiselman, Director of the Apopka Area Chamber of 

Commerce, does sit on the Orlando Economic Development Commission. 

 

LEGAL SERVICES 

 

The Legal Services budget was reviewed and discussed. Discussion was held regarding the 

specialized legal representation. 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

 

Administrative Services budget was reviewed and discussed. Commissioner Bankson inquired if 

the large decrease in the 3400 account was lobbyist. Mr. Irby responded in the affirmative. 

Mayor Kilsheimer pointed out Administrative Services also had a requested position for a 

Deputy Chief Administrative Officer cut from the budget. Discussion was held regarding the 

need for two new administrative pool cars. 

 

Council recessed at 3:45 p.m. and reconvened at 3:49 p.m. 

COMMUNITY OUTREACH 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this division includes the Public Information Officer and Grants 

Writer and Neighborhood Coordinator. It was originally Administrative Services and 

Community Outreach came from reorganization. He stated the Apopka Youth Works summer 

jobs program was pulled together by Dr. Jackson and it has been a great success. He pointed out 

the Community Events Coordinator position w as moved under Recreation. It was 

determined to postpone the review of Community Outreach to a later date so to be 

reviewing events with recreation. 

 

CITY CLERK 

 

The City Clerk’s proposed budget was reviewed and discussed. It was the consensus, due to the 

increase in lien searches and public records requests, the Part-time Records Clerk be placed back 

in the budget for 20 hours a week at $15.00 per hour. 

 

 

6



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 19, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 

FINANCIAL SERVICES 

 

Financial Services was reviewed and discussed. Ms. Barclay advised the requested position for 

Budget Analyst has been cut. This position would be responsible for preparing the annual budget 

as well as monitoring it and preparing the budget amendments. She advised there have been two 

positions moved into Finance, Purchasing Manager and Payroll. She stated with the 

implementation of the new financial software there will be more automation which will help. 

Discussion was held regarding the city absorbing convenience fees for credit card payments and 

passing this fee to the consumer. 

 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

 

Information Technology was reviewed and discussed. Mr. Hippler said the short term goal is to 

complete the process of the city moving forward from the services previously operating under. 

He stated the long term goal was to add more and new technology with regards to the way we do 

our operations. He stated Edmunds will allow more work to be done in the field as opposed to 

being required to come back to the office. He discussed areas where applications can be 

consolidated. He pointed out the software maintenance costs and other costs that were not 

previously under his budget, but have been centralized to Information Technology accounting. 

Discussion was held regarding storage and use of cloud storage. Discussion ensued regarding 

audio/visual equipment for Council Chambers. Discussion was held regarding the 4100 account, 

item 10, Wi-Fi Device Power Service and considering this be cut. It was determined to evaluate 

what access points would be most valuable to maintain as citywide Wi-Fi has been discontinued. 

 

Mr. Hippler pointed an item that was cut from the 6400 line which is Item 3, Brocade 

Replacement Switches. He advised the Police Department’s switch is 96 port switch that is at 

end of life and is 10 years old. He suggested, if there was any way, that it be placed back in 

the budget. When asked if this goes out what would happen, Mr. Hippler advised they would 

lose communication with the data center, therefore, there would be no computers or phones. 

He said, knowing this, and there is no warranty of support, it is a fall back in case 

something should happen. It was determined that Item 3 be added back in the budget. On page 

148, Item 10, iWorQ is software to manage Public Services various divisions for work orders, 

maintenance, and inventory. This replaces the WebQA that will be discontinued. Mr. Irby 

advised this needed to be placed back in the budget. 

 

ADJOURNMENT - There being no further discussion, the workshop adjourned at 5:40 p.m. 

p.m. 

 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST; 

 
_____________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

7



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. City Council Workshop July 20, 2016 
  

8



CITY OF APOPKA 
 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 20, 2016, at 1:00 p.m., in the City 

of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

   Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

  Commissioner Kyle Becker 

  Commissioner Doug Bankson 

  Glenn Irby, City Administrator 

  Pam Barclay, Finance Director 

  

PRESS PRESENT:    John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

    Dale Fenwick, The Apopka Voice 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mayor Kilsheimer called the Budget 

Workshop to order at 1:00 p.m. and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said it was incumbent upon the Council to get through the proposed budget and 

make decisions providing guidance to staff.  He affirmed they will be required to convene as City 

Council to set the tentative millage rate prior to August 1, 2016.  

 

Pam Barclay, Finance Director, said she would like to address the concerns regarding the GFOA 

best practice and the unrestricted fund balance. She stated the GFOA best practice is to keep no 

less than two months of unrestricted fund balance of regular expenses. She affirmed that two 

months was 16.7%. Also, unrestricted fund balance includes assigned, committed, and unassigned 

as indicated on page twenty in the CAFR. The fund balance is broken down into five categories, 

non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. The logic and reason behind this 

is that committed and assigned for the criteria of spending is set by the Council and management. 

Those can be rescinded relatively easily. Restricted funds are externally driven. At the end of 2015, 

in the CAFR, there was $10,828,328. She said by using just the unrestricted amount, it brings us 

to 21.5% for the fund balance to expenditures.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said he totally agreed with the statement in the “Conclusion” of the July 

13, 2016 letter in the budget workbook that states “Although economic indicators point to a 

recovery, history shows it could be a slow recovery process. This year we should continue to focus 

on economic development, sustainability and keeping our community safe…” He stated that 

responsibility falls on the Council and he tends toward the conservative side. He said we are 

playing catch up from several years of a bad economy.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said that Mr. Irby was very clear yesterday when he said this was not sustainable 

and we cannot continue to spend more than we take in. At the same time, there are items that are 

must haves and things that we want to have. He stated that they need to strike a balance between 

 

9



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 20, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 2 of 5 

 

doing the things we have to do and then also taking responsibility for the quality of life in our 

community.  

 

In response to Commissioner Bankson’s inquiry to replenish reserves, Mr. Irby advised revenues 

coming in cover our operating costs only. He said that operating costs do not take into account 

new employees and new equipment required in order to do their job. It does not include the 

replacement of capital equipment. He affirmed there is not a plan to replenish, as a plan cannot be 

formulated based on the revenues coming in and projected for the future. He pointed out that some 

of the funds are restricted funds and the use is limited.  

 

Police Department 

 

Chief McKinley gave a PowerPoint presentation in order to provide Council with information to 

be able to make an informed decision about the Police Department. He said they talked about 

accreditation yesterday, and said accreditation is not equivalent to an ISO rating. He explained 

accreditation makes sure policies and procedures are proper and evaluates security of facilities and 

makes sure it is up to date on best practices. He stated the closest thing they found that would 

compare to an ISO rating for a law enforcement agency would be the ratio of officers per 1000 

residents. He said you do not want to rely totally on per-capita, as you need performance measures 

as well. He reviewed the growth of Apopka over the last twelve years and the number of officers 

that have been allocated over the same time frame, pointing out that it has remained steady until 

this fiscal year where they were authorized seven additional officers. He reviewed the officer ratio 

for local agencies along the I-4 corridor, advising the average ratio is 2.46 and the Apopka Police 

Department’s ratio is 2.08 officers per 1000 residents. He said for fiscal year 2016/2017 they are 

requesting five officers, and this request brings the per-capita rate to 2.14, which is still well below 

the Florida average. He declared it would take twenty officers in order to bring them to a per-capita 

of 2.5. Based on this, they looked at how to get there over the next five years. He reviewed 

projected growth of Apopka over the next five years and what it would take to maintain officer 

ratio. He declared if they do not begin to plan now for increased growth, it is likely they will not 

be able to catch up with growth in a responsible and prudent manner in the future. He stated it 

needs to be realized that future budgetary considerations must include civilian support personnel, 

change in equipment and technology needs, and significant capital improvements in order to 

provide the services our community will expect and deserves. He said they are requesting to fund 

five new officer positions ($358,580) so they may work towards the 2.5 officer per-capita ratio. 

They also request funding of two civilian traffic enforcement officers ($99,465) to administer the 

traffic intersection safety program. This will allow sworn officers to be put back on the streets. He 

reviewed the equipment and operating expenses for five new officers. He explained these positions 

were cut and they are requesting they be put back in the budget.  He went on to explain they have 

an aging fleet and they were trying to implement a replacement program, stating thirty-nine of 

their vehicles have over 100,000 miles and are all over five years old. They do have the take home 

vehicle program and although it is recognized as a benefit to the police officers, it is also a benefit 

to the City of Apopka and the residents. He reviewed support services being requested to include 

a LASER Mapping System. Vehicles being requested come to $219,000 and Support Services 

$199,000.  A copy of the PowerPoint is on file in the Clerk’s office.  He declared the things they 

have outlined today are needs to keep this community safe and bring the department into the 21st 

Century with technology. He pointed out that $2.8 million of their budget is for a communication 

tower in the north end of the city. This tower is for everyone in the city that needs to have 

10



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 20, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 3 of 5 

 

communication to the north end of the community.  The total of what they are requesting be put 

back in the budget is $1,122,040.  

 

In response to Commissioner Bankson, Chief McKinley said their first priority would be the sworn 

officers, but they cannot do their job without the equipment and vehicles. He stated they would 

like the eight new vehicles that were cut back in due to the aging fleet.  

 

In response to Commissioner Becker with regards to what impact adding officers would have on 

the station, Chief McKinley said they can manage the growth in the current building and advised 

they have been working to develop impact fees for Police and Fire. Discussion ensued regarding 

the need for pool vehicles.  

 

Commissioner Dean said he wanted it to be noted that the $70,000 in the budget for Apopka Begins 

and Ends with “A” should be designated to the Police Department budget. 

 

Discussion was held regarding the red light camera program. Chief McKinley advised our contract 

is through July 2017.  

Police Chief’s Office – discussed and reviewed. 

 

Police Field Services – discussed and reviewed. 

It was the consensus to try and find a way to add in the five new police officers, as requested on 

page 212, as well as the associated vehicles and equipment on page 225.  

 

Police Support Services – discussed and reviewed. 

The Traffic Citation Specialists will be restored as listed on page 229.  Items 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 will 

be added back as listed on page 242.  

 

Crossing Guards – discussed and reviewed. 

Chief McKinley advised the crossing guards have an hourly rate of $8.50 an hour and the going 

rate on a recent market study showed the rate at $10.87 an hour. This was added in to the budget.  

 

Dispatch – discussed and reviewed. 

Discussion ensued regarding the cell tower for the northern area of the city and Chief McKinley 

advised they are losing communication with officers and firefighters in that part of the city and 

this is a safety issue. This tower will also provide communication for other services of the city.  

 

Park Rangers – discussed and reviewed. 

Discussion was held regarding Park Rangers. Chief McKinley said there are four part-time Park 

Rangers and if the full-time position was approved, they were going to utilize one of the aging 

vehicles for this position and he would be showing a presence at all facilities. He advised they 

could take one of the part-time positions and change it to full-time. The consensus was to make 

one of the part-time positions full-time and keep three part-time positions for Park Rangers.  

 

 

The Council recessed at 3:47 p.m. and reconvened at 3:58 p.m. 

 

 

11



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 20, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 4 of 5 

 

Fire Department 

  

Chief Carnesale said the Fire Department’s budget was very similar to last year, with the exception 

of Fire Station 5.  

 

Fire Chief’s – discussed and reviewed. 

 

Fire Suppression – discussed and reviewed. 

Discussion was held regarding building Fire Station 5, furnishing, and staffing. Chief Carnesale 

advised they received the second floor plan update today and they will start working on the site 

plan. There is an estimated completion date of June or July 2017. The staffing is for the last quarter 

of the fiscal year.  

 

In response to Commissioner Velazquez, Mr. Irby advised the Fire Impact Fee Study should be 

completed within the next few days.  

 

Discussion was held regarding funding for and the need for Fire Station 6 next year.  

 

Chief Carnesale reviewed a map where the stations are located. He affirmed that Station 2 on 

Welch Road covers everything to the north and Station 5 will cover the very north end once it is 

completed.  He explained that Station 2 is exceeding the normal or average response time just to 

get to the back of Rock Springs Ridge. He declared this was more than just an ISO issue, it was 

also EMS, stating a person in cardiac arrest has maybe four minutes and it is taking almost double 

that to get to the very north areas.  

 

In response to Commissioner Bankson regarding funds from last year’s budget that has not been 

used, Ms. Barclay advised that would be in the first budget amendment of next year to carry 

forward.  

 

Ms. Barclay explained that with page 174, Account 5550 has off-set revenues for the public 

relations programs.  

 

Chief Carnesale explained on page 177, Account 6400, Item 3 was eliminated to balance the 

budget. He reported they received an email from Dr. Jackson that Senator Nelson called and the 

AFG $10,000 grant has been received for this item. Ms. Barclay explained this will be moved 

under grants.  

 

Emergency Medical Services – discussed and reviewed. 

 

Chief Carnesale said on personnel costs, line item 1225, explaining that proficiency pay for 

Paramedic is an additional $8,000 a year. Over the past couple of years, they kept the budgeted 

number of $408,000 and it had been reduced to $344,004. He advised they have eight firefighters 

in paramedic school and the $8,000 will be needed for each, bringing this amount to $416,000 for 

this year. Ms. Barclay advised this would be an additional $72,000.  

 

In summary, Ms. Barclay advised we are right at $1,373,395 to be added back to the budget. 

 

12



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on July 20, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Page 5 of 5 

 

ADJOURNMENT - There being no further discussion, the workshop adjourned at 4:00 p.m. 

p.m. 

 

 

 

ATTEST:       ____________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

__________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, CMC, City Clerk 

13



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. City Council meeting August 17, 2016. 
  

14



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on August 17, 2016, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

PRESS PRESENT:   John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

INVOCATION:  Mayor Kilsheimer introduced Pastor Harvey Carpenter, of Journey Church, 

who gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer said on August 26, 1920, the Nineteenth 

Amendment was formally adopted guaranteeing women the right to vote. The journey began 

more than 70 years before at the Seneca Falls Convention organized by Elizabeth Cady Stanton 

and Lucretia Mott to discuss women’s rights. The convention ended with the passage of a 

resolution declaring the duty of women to secure the sacred right of voting. Suffragettes worked 

tirelessly, first winning the right to vote in individual states. When America entered World War 

I in 1917, women aided the war effort breaking down the remaining opposition to suffrage. By 

1918 both the Republican and Democratic parties endorsed women’s suffrage which led the 

way to the passage of the Nineteenth Amendment. He asked everyone to remember the sacrifice 

and courage of those who fought for the right of each and every one of us to vote as he led in the 

Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council workshop July 13, 2016. 

2. City Council special meeting July 26, 2016. 

Commissioner Bankson said he felt compelled to comment at the end of the special meeting, 

those comments were left out and he wanted those comments noted. He reiterated that we 

were forced to have to make a move for our taxes to give time to finish the budget. He 

wanted it noted that he did address this stating that our taxes are just a small portion of the 

total revenues to run the city. He said Commissioners were challenged on the courage of 

their convictions. His conviction was to say no, we were not simply going to do that to try 

and solve the problems, because there is no way to solve all the problems. 

 

3. City Council meeting August 3, 2016. 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to approve 

the July 13, 2016 workshop, July 26, 2016 special meeting as amended, and August 3, 

2016 City Council minutes. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Bankson and Becker voting aye. 

 

15



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 2 

 

 

PUBLIC/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

Proclamations: 

1. Apopka High School Bowling Team Proclamation. 

Mayor Kilsheimer read the proclamation recognizing the success of the Apopka High School 

Bowling team and team members, and claimed August 17, 2016 to be Apopka High School 

Bowling Team Day in the City of Apopka. He presented each member with a copy of the 

proclamation.  

 

Public Comment Period: 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said before starting with public comment he would like to provide an update 

regarding the vote taken at the last meeting on the issue of Edwards Field. He advised the action 

taken two weeks ago to hire an engineering firm to draw up a master plan is very preliminary in 

terms of developing potential concepts for Edwards Field. In the preliminary meeting with this 

firm, they were advised that this is where the Foliage Festival, and the Apopka Fair are held and 

that we have to continue to incorporate those events. He affirmed it was not his intention to take 

Edward Fields away from the groups that use it, or Kit Land Nelson Park. He advised when the 

new hospital opens, the existing hospital campus will be redeveloped into a community of several 

hundred residences for active seniors. He said there was a lot of land behind Fran Carlton and in 

that vicinity that could be repurposed from what it is today into a more active or larger 

recreational type complex. He stated CPH has been asked to dream up what a plan might be and 

what could happen, realizing the uses that already exist. He reiterated they were not doing away 

with any of the facilities that any of the groups in Apopka have relied upon for years and the 

engineers have been instructed to take that into consideration.  

 

Pastor Richard King said during the 2014 City Election he voted for change that he believed 

would include him and his community. He expressed concern regarding issues of lack of 

communication and the appearance of disrespect from City Hall.  He spoke of a sign that was 

posted in his community for a public hearing on zoning that was lying on the ground. He stated 

they met with the developer that was proposing light manufacturing in that area and said they 

voiced support at meetings for the rezoning due to the creation of jobs and this direction. He said 

they understand now that the plant will not be built in that location and said they deserved to 

know this would not happen. He asked the Commission if they respect and support his 

community. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised he has not heard that and no one has communicated to the city that 

they were not going to come. He said initially there was going to be one piece of property traded 

for another and they could not get to that point until the rezoning was held. Once the rezoning was 

done, the values of the property were looked at and their property is valued higher, so it cannot be 

an even trade. He affirmed that the city has not heard from the owner of the company for more 

than two months.  

 

Rod Love spoke about what he called a reoccurring theme that takes place of no inclusion and 

lack of cooperation and transparency. He stated as the city is set to proceed forward with the 

recommended budget items, the Commission was obligated to have that exchange with the 

16



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 3 

 

citizens that attend meetings. He stated one of those items was the submitted grant for Alonzo 

Williams Park. He said he supports schools, but the $35,000 in the budget was a core school board 

item. He suggested this amount be used to waive the fees for Pop Warner and other sports clubs 

so they can use the fields without paying for the use, or fund midnight basketball on Friday and 

Saturday nights which is a proven crime prevention program. He asked for more transparency and 

fairness in the process.  

 

Commissioner Dean said he agreed that the $35,000 should be used to defray fees for the sports 

programs on the city owned fields, stating that we pay school taxes.  

 

Commissioner Becker said he welcomed this point, but that he felt the funds spent on the Apopka 

Youth program and the money spent on schools was an investment in our youth and a good 

investment. He said in the grand scheme, $35,000 was fairly immaterial to our overall budget. He 

said he valued the feedback and did take it into consideration. 

 

Commissioner Bankson said there were several items that were earmarked to go back to and that 

item was not a decided issue, advising we were still processing the budget.  

 

Jon DeClue, Immediate Past President of the Rotary Club of Apopka, read a prepared statement 

regarding the desire to construct a splash pad, skate park, gym, and swimming pool on the 

property known as Edwards Field. He said while these amenities might hold value for our city, it 

was disappointing to know there has been no public discussion on this project or the impact it 

might have on the Rotary Club of Apopka or the Apopka Woman’s Club, stating it was surprising 

and equally disappointing. A copy of his prepared statement is on file in the Clerk’s office. 

 

Lori Mountcastle Schweitzer, President of the Apopka Woman’s Club, read a prepared statement, 

stating their club has been an active part of this city for 59 years and during that time they have 

donated more than a million dollars to Apopka charities and organizations, supporting the 

community. She spoke of the Apopka Art and Foliage Festival and affirmed that one hundred 

percent of their net proceeds flow back into the community.  She stated they found it discouraging 

and expressed concern that they were not given the opportunity to offer input about the proposed 

use of Edwards Field.  A copy of her prepared statement is on file in the Clerk’s office. 

 

Lowell Swanberg spoke regarding concerns of the future use of Edwards Field. He said October 

2001 through 2002 Apopka celebrated becoming 120 years old with yearlong festivities. He stated 

the Rotary Club of Apopka, founded in 1927, was one of the premier sponsors of the celebration, 

hosing the first ever Apopka’s Old Fashion Country Fair in 2002 at Kit Land Nelson Park and 

Edwards Field. He spoke of the hard work of Rotarians and their contributions for the betterment 

of the Apopka community. He said without the use of Edwards Field for the Apopka Fair and Fall 

Family Festival, these dollars for contributions would no longer be available. He said Rotary 

appreciates the partnership with the City of Apopka and thanked the Council for reconsidering the 

use of Edwards Field for such programs.  

 

Stella Swanberg said her family moved to Apopka 43 years ago and she has been a member of the 

Apopka Woman’s Club for 42 years. She spoke of improvements the Apopka Woman’s Club 

helped to make to Kit Land Nelson Park, including the Gazebo in the middle of the park. She 

reviewed a picture board that she brought of how the idea took shape. She stated that because of 

17



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 4 

 

the Art and Foliage Festival, the Apopka Woman’s Club has been able to make upgrades to the 

park to include water pipes, a speaker system, and trees that have been planted. She affirmed that 

2017 will be the 56th Annual Apopka Art and Foliage Festival and asked that they be allowed to 

keep this going for all to enjoy.  

 

Alice Nolan said she knows this is a preliminary plan and there is nothing set in stone at this time, 

but as reviewing everything she prepared a letter regarding all of the history and wonderful things 

these clubs have done for the whole community. She decided that should be heard from the 

women that have been involved and stated she has been a member of the Apopka Woman’s Club 

for a year. She spoke of the other properties in that area, but the plan spoke of Edwards Field. She 

said overflow parking will go into the neighborhoods and will become hazardous. She suggested 

the athletic field by the Ninth Grade Center be considered for this use, as it needs a facelift and 

there is plenty of room there for a splash pad and skate park. She said this area already has 

restrooms and a place that concessions can be sold from.  

 

Tenita Reid spoke of concerns regarding Item three on the consent agenda concerning a request to 

allow alcohol to be consumed at City Hall for an event that is already scheduled for September 15, 

2016. She stated this was not an appropriate venue to be serving alcohol at City Hall. She 

suggested the city is slowly losing its family friendly environment and promoting alcohol in 

venues that are inappropriate in her opinion.  

 

Young Kim requested Council delay the CRA appointment. He said under Florida Law, Chapter 

163, and Part 3, local governments designate certain areas which need improvements. He stated 

the CRA designated an area that can be found in the City records He suggested the CRA has 

misallocated funds which straight from its purposes of improving blighted areas within CRA 

zones, stating the UCF Incubator was one of those. He requested Ms. Williams appointment be 

delayed and they find a person who truly represents the interests within the designated zone. He 

said he was fully qualified with a law degree and acquainted with many business owners and 

property owners within the CRA area. He again asked the Council to delay this appointment and 

find the best qualified person.  

 

Ray Shackelford said with respect to City Council, it was Commissioner Dean and Commissioner 

Arrowsmith that promoted the summer job youth program prior to final approval. He stated as an 

educator, and a concerned citizen, he applauded any effort to support programs that serves in 

education with fiscal integrity. He asked if the public could obtain a detailed finance report of the 

$20,000 for the Apopka Begins and Ends with an “A” program and asked how this program was 

being assessed to determine the impact of student learning, student success, and student retention. 

He said he also echoed what Mr. Love said with regards to using the money to weigh recreation 

fees for our young people. He stated with regards to the splash pad and skate park, he welcomed 

any centralized downtown location that does not impact current programs and services, and said 

the planning needs to involve citizens. He asked if they could get a diverse group of citizens, 

including a local high school student to plan the Old Florida Outdoor Festival and inquired what 

the criteria would be for a volunteer stating he would like to render his services as a volunteer for 

this festival. He declared sending the Chief of Police five miles to remove a law abiding citizen 

from under a tree to a sidewalk while an officer was on site was a waste of tax payers’ money.  

 

Pastor Hezekiah Bradford, Jr. said he represented the South Apopka Ministerial Alliance and the 

18



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 5 

 

Apopka Christian Ministerial Alliance. He stated he has been trying to get on the agenda, not just 

four minutes of comment, regarding single member districts. He said they had a march and there 

was not a restroom open at Alonzo Williams Park, simply because there is no representation. He 

stated they want someone they can hold accountable and someone that will represent that 

community. He said he was going to hold each of the Commissioners accountable as he has asked 

multiple times to ask to get on the agenda. He stated it wasn’t fair that the Rotary Club got on the 

agenda. He said they need to look at this situation and make it a forum by which he is heard and 

the community is heard.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said this has been talked about enough to the extent that it is clear in his mind 

that the community does not want to have a discussion on single member districts. He pointed out 

that the Rotary Club and the Woman’s Club were not on the agenda, but came here for public 

comment just like Pastor Bradford did.  

 

Pastor Bradford asked if since March they had been back to the south side. 

 

Commissioner Bankson responded in the affirmative. He said they did meet and he came back to 

the City and met with Mr. Irby who said he would like to meet. He stated the biggest issue at this 

time and consuming time is the budget He said there is a desire to meet and he has been back in 

South Apopka on multiple times. He stated there were grants in the works and this is being 

discussed in the budget meetings.  

 

Commissioner Becker said he was not in favor of single member districts, but said he would be in 

favor of an overall comprehensive Charter review. He stated he has proven that he is willing to go 

above and beyond in serving the entire community.  

 

Pastor Bradford said there should be money in the budget for Alonzo Williams Park, as a grant is 

never a guarantee.  Mayor Kilsheimer offered to meet with Pastor Bradford to discuss these 

matters. 

 

Demarkus Johnson said he held the march at Alonzo Williams Park and said he was here for 

something else wherein they would like to get the community together for a BBQ at Alonzo 

Williams Park. He said we have a great Police Department and thanked them for their support and 

help. He stated he was looking for support and funding for the All Lives Matter Community BBQ. 

 

CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve the Disbursement Report for the month of July, 2016 

2. Authorize the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Rock Springs Ridge, Phase VII-B 

3. Approve the serving of Wine at An Evening with the Artists event 

4. Approve appointment of Chenicqua T. Williams to the Community Redevelopment Agency 

5. Accept a scoreboard sponsorship from The John Land Community Trust Inc. 

 

Commissioner Becker said his concern with the CRA is having representation of people that 

reside within the District and know what is good for the area to make it thrive again. He said 

the Community Redevelopment Agency Act under Section B-3, does dictate that the agency 

may create whatever subcommittees it deems appropriate. He recommended subcommittees 

be created that are targeted in the focus for the CRA.  

19



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 6 

 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised that Mark Reggentin, Community Development Director is 

working on the CRA Plan to bring before the CRA Board and City Council.  He said the 

CRA has not been very active in the past.  

 

City Attorney Shepard advised that as a CRA Board, they can set whatever committees they 

wish. He said most CRAs that he represents have their own advisory committees. He stated 

he feels there is a failure of understanding since it has been so long since the CRA has 

operated properly. Once this is fully understood, the key to doing what Mr. Kim is requesting 

is in the plan.  He affirmed the plan needs to be reviewed, receive comment from the public 

as to what kind of projects and improvements they want to see and where the TIF funds 

should be spent. He reiterated the plan is the issue. 

 

Commissioner Bankson inquired about Item three and the location of churches and schools, 

to which Mayor Kilsheimer advised the alcohol ordinance was amended a few years ago that 

addressed these matters and any event on city owned facilities needs to be approved by City 

Council.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve the five items on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with 

Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Bankson and Becker voting 

aye. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2512 – Second Reading – Vacate – Harmon Road Right of Way – The 

City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2512 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO VACATE A 

PORTION OF HARMON ROAD RIGHT OF WAY; LOCATED WEST OF 

BINION ROAD; AND IN SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 21, RANGE 28 OF 

ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE 

CITY CLERK, FOR SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by the 

City Clerk. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker and seconded by Commissioner Bankson to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2512. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

20



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on August 17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 7 

 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

 

Commissioner Becker said he attended the Travis Tritt concert at the amphitheater this past 

Saturday evening. He reported September 28, 2016, is the target date for the Task Force 

basketball game community event at Cooper Sportsplex.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez said she attended the Pokeman Go event at the Northwest complex 

and they had a large crowd in attendance.  

 

Commissioner Becker thanked Chief Carnesale for the tour of Station 1 of the Chinese 

exchange students. 

 

MAYOR’S REPORT – No report. 

 

NOT REQUIRING ACTION 

1. Letter from the Florida Department of Health, reporting recent water testing results in 

Parkview at Wekiva subdivision. 

2. Thank you letter from Sheller Oaks Community Association. 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 8:36 p.m. 
 

 

 

        ___________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST; 

 

___________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

21



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Approve the ranking of firms and authorize the negotiation of a contract for the Land Development Code update. 
  

22



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

X CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 7, 2016 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Ranking Sheets 

 OTHER:    
  
SUBJECT:  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR UPDATE OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 

CODE. 

   

REQUEST:  APPROVE THE RANKING OF THE FIRMS AND ALLOW STAFF TO 

NEGOTIATE A CONTRACT USING THE CCNA PROCESS, WHICH WILL 

BE BROUGHT BACK BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL AT A LATER DATE 

FOR APPROVAL. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

On July 1, 2016, the City received qualifications, data and expressions of interest for professional services 

related to the update of the Land Development Code.  The Land Development Code has not been updated 

since 1993.  Although some changes to the code have been made on a case-by-case basis to address specific 

problems, no overall evaluation of the code has been conducted to ensure consistency both internally and 

with the Comprehensive Plan.  An Evaluation Committee consisting of the Community Development 

Director, Public Services Director, Planning Manager, Senior Project Coordinator and Planner II reviewed 

the qualifications and ranked the firms as follows: 

 

1. Clarion Associates Inc. 

2. Canin Associates 

Staff is requesting to be authorized to negotiate a contract with Clarion Associates Inc, using the 

Consultants Competitive Negotiation Act (CCNA).  If an agreement cannot be negotiated, staff would then 

attempt to negotiate with the second firm.  The negotiated contract will then be brought back to the City 

Council at a later date for final approval. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the ranking of the firms and direct staff to negotiate a contract using the CCNA process, which 

will be brought back before the City Council at a later date for approval. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief  

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Authorize a Door-to-Door Solicitation permit for Andrus Albi, E.H. Engelmeier Roofing & Sheet Metal Co., Inc. 
  

34



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

X CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 7, 2016 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Application 

 OTHER:    
  
SUBJECT:  DOOR TO DOOR SOLICATION – ANDRUS ALBI, E.H. ENGELMEIER 

ROOFING & SHEET METAL CO., INC. 

   

REQUEST:  AUTHORIZE ISSUANCE OF A DOOR TO DOOR SOLICATION PERMIT 

TO ANDRUS ALBI, E.H. ENGELMEIER ROOFING & SHEET METAL CO., 

INC. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

Andrus Albi, E.H. Engelmeier Roofing & Sheet Metal Co., is requesting approval to go door-to-door within 

the city limits of Apopka to solicit roofing services. 

 

The application has been reviewed and approved by the Police, Fire, Community Development Department 

and Risk Management.  The applicant has also provided proof of liability insurance, submitted to and passed 

a background check, and provided a hold harmless agreement.  If approved the permit would be valid for 

one-year. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE 

 

N/A 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize issuance of a Door-to-Door Solicitation permit to Andrus Albi of the E.H. Engelmeier Roofing 

& Sheet Metal Co. 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

35



36



37



38



39



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Approve the first amendment to the Marden Road Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement.   Glenn A. Irby 
  

40



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  September 7, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:  First Amendment to Marden Road 

  X   OTHER: Business                           Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement  
  

 

SUBJECT: FIRST AMENDMENT TO MARDEN ROAD INTERCHANGE COST SHARING 

AGREEMENT 
 

REQUEST: REVIEW, DISCUSSION, UNDERSTANDING AND AGREEMENT OF SAID 

AMENDMENT 
  
SUMMARY:   
 

The Marden Road Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement was entered into between the City and MMI 

Development on September 17, 2015.  The agreement allows MMI Development to share costs with the City 

related to the construction of a half interchange between the SR 414 and Marden Road.  There is an agreed upon 

formula capping the available cost share at $5,850,000. 

 

To construct one of the two ramps, MMI Development has to dedicate to the Central Florida Expressway 

Authority [CFX] a portion of land to be used as right of way.  The original cost share agreement states in section 

four [4] that an agreed upon value [between MMI Developers and the City of Apopka] for any required land 

dedication by MMI Developers for right of way use would be counted towards the cost of building the half 

interchange.  MMI is claiming the value of that land is $225,000.  The original agreement allows the city to have 

the land appraised and split the cost of said appraisal with MMI [appraisals recently ordered by the city have 

cost between $4,000 and $5,000].  Said agreed upon value would not increase the maximum amount of the 

available cost share [$5,850,000]; rather, it adds to MMI’s bottom line and would be recognized as eligible for 

cost share funds from the City under the agreement.   

 

The dedicated land for right of way is to be deeded to CFX.  The land is within the Small Study Area and is thus 

believed to be subject to all of the provisions of the Cost Share Agreement.  CFX is requesting this specific 

property be excluded from the original agreement. 

 

The following amendment is intended to do two things: 1) mutually agree the dedicated land is valued at 

$225,000; and 2) mutually agree to otherwise remove the land from the conditions of the original cost share 

agreement.    
FUNDING SOURCE:  
 

N/A   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:   
Staff recommends accepting the stated value of the land of $225,000 and agreeing this is a part of the overall 

cost as outlined in the original cost share agreement with MMI Developers.  Staff further recommends allowing 

the property being dedicated to be removed from the provisions of the original cost share agreement. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director   Police Chief   Fire Chief 

41



PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO: 
TED B. EDWARDS, ESQUIRE 
1350 N. ORANGE AVENUE, SUITE 260 
WINTER PARK, FLORIDA  32789 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MARDEN ROAD INTERCHANGE COST 
SHARING AGREEMENT 

 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO MARDEN ROAD INTERCHANGE COST 
SHARING AGREEMENT (the “Amendment”), is effective as of the latest date of 
execution by the parties hereto (the “Effective Date”), and is made and entered into by 
and between EMERSON POINT ASSOC., LLLP, a Florida limited liability limited 
partnership (“Emerson I”); EMERSON POINT PHASE II, LLC,  a Florida limited liability 
company (“Emerson II”) (Emerson I and Emerson II collectively referred to as the 
“Owners”, and individually as  an “Owner”), EMERSON MMI-INT, LLC, a Florida limited 
liability company (“Owners’ Agent”),  and THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, a Florida 
municipal corporation (“City” or “Apopka”) (Owners, Owners’ Agent,  and the City are 
collectively referred to as the “Parties” and individually as a “Party”). 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, Owners, Owner’s Agent, and the City are parties to that 
certain Marden Road Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement with an effective date of 
September 29, 2015, recorded September 29, 2015 in O.R. Book 10989, Page 4329, 
Public Records of Orange County, Florida (the “Agreement”);  

 WHEREAS, Emerson II either has or is in the process of dedicating to the 
Central Florida Expressway Authority (the “Authority”) certain lands owned by Emerson 
II necessary for the construction of the Interchange described on Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and incorporated by reference (the “Right of Way”);  

 WHEREAS, the Authority has requested the Right of Way be released 
from the terms and conditions of the Agreement; and  

  WHEREAS, the Parties also desire to agree upon the value of the Right 
of Way being transferred by Emerson II to the Authority, and desire to amend and 
supplement the Agreement in accordance with and as provided in this Amendment. 

 
AMENDMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the City, Owners, and 
Owner’s Agent hereby amend the Agreement as follows: 

42



 2 
 

1. Recitals.  The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

2. Definitions.  All capitalized terms used herein and not defined herein shall 
have the meaning ascribed to them in the Amendment. 

 
3. Release of Right of Way.  The Parties hereto modify and amend the legal 

description of the Property set forth in Exhibit “A” to the Agreement to less and except 
the legal description of the Right of Way therefrom.  The Parties hereby release, 
discharge and remove the Right of Way from the terms, conditions and encumbrances 
of the Agreement.  

 
4. Value of Right of Way, The Parties further stipulate and agree the value 

of the Right of Way to be $225,000.00 the amount set forth in the Project Costs and is 
so approved.  

 
5. Effect of Amendment.  All provisions of the Amendment, except as 

modified by this Amendment, remain in full force and effect and are reaffirmed.   
 

6. Interpretation of Amendment. In the event of any conflict, inconsistency, 
or incongruity between any provision of this Amendment and any provision of the 
Amendment, the provisions of this Amendment will govern and control. 

 
7. Captions.  Titles or captions of paragraphs contained in this Agreement 

are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference, and in no way define, 
limit, extend, or describe the scope of this Amendment or the intent of any provision 
hereof. 

 
8. Recordation of Agreement.  An executed original of this Amendment 

shall be recorded, at Owners’ expense, in the Public Records of Orange County, Florida, 
within thirty (30) days after the Effective Date. 

 
9. No Further Amendment.  Except as provided herein, the terms and 

conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

  

43



 3 
 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to 
be duly executed by their respective duly authorized representatives on the dates set 
forth below. 
 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA  
By:  Apopka City Council 
 
 
By:   

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
Date:   

 
 
ATTEST:  Linda F. Goff  
As Clerk of the City of Apopka 
 
 
By:   

City Clerk 
 
 

 

 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 
2016, by Joseph E. Kilsheimer, as Mayor of the CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, a 
Florida municipal corporation.  He/she is personally known to me or has produced 
______________________________ as identification. 

 
 
   
Signature of Notary Public 
 
   
Typed name of Notary Public 
 

 
[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

  

44



 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Witnesses: 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Print Name:    
 
    
Print Name:    
 
 
 

“EMERSON I” 
 
EMERSON POINT ASSOC., LLLP a 
Florida limited liability limited partnership 
 
 
By:   
Print Name: Michael E. Wright 
Title: General Partner 
 
 
Date:      
 

 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 
2016, by Michael E. Wright, as General Partner for EMERSON POINT ASSOC., LLLP, 
a Florida limited liability limited partnership, on behalf of the partnership.  He is 
personally known to me or has produced ___________________________________ 
as identification. 

 
   
Signature of Notary Public 
 
   
Typed name of Notary Public 
 

 
[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

  

45



 5 
 

Witnesses: 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Print Name:    
 
    
Print Name:    
 
 

“EMERSON II” 
 
EMERSON POINT PHASE II, LLC  a 
Florida limited liability company  
 
 
By:   
Print Name:  Michael E. Wright 
Title:  Manager 
 
Date:      
 

   
Print Name:    
 
    
Print Name:    
 
 

By:   
Print Name:  Mary L. Demetree 
Title:  Manager 
 
Date:      
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 
2016, by Michael E. Wright, as Manager for EMERSON POINT PHASE II, LLC, a 
Florida limited liability company, on behalf of the company.  He is personally known to 
me or has produced ___________________________________ as identification. 

 
   
Signature of Notary Public 
 
   
Typed name of Notary Public 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 
2016, by Mary L. Demetree, as Manager for EMERSON POINT PHASE II, LLC, a 
Florida limited liability company, on behalf of the company.  She is personally known to 
me or has produced ___________________________________ as identification. 

 
   
Signature of Notary Public 
 
   
Typed name of Notary Public 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

46



 6 
 

 
 

Witnesses: 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Print Name:    
 
    
Print Name:    
 
 

“OWNERS’ AGENT” 
 
EMERSON MMI-INT, LLC, a Florida 
limited liability company  
 
 
By:   
Print Name:  Michael E. Wright 
Title:  Manager 
 
Date:      
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 
2016, by Michael E. Wright, as Manager for EMERSON MMI-INT, LLC, a Florida limited 
liability company, on behalf of the company.  He is personally known to me or has 
produced ___________________________________ as identification. 

 
   
Signature of Notary Public 
 
   
Typed name of Notary Public 

  

47



 7 
 

 
Exhibit “A” 

 
NORTHEAST CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY 
PARCEL 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
A PORTION OF SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCE AT A FOUND RAILROAD SPIKE WITH X-CUT MARKING THE NORTHWEST CORNER 
OF SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE 
RUN SOUTH 88°57'32" EAST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 21, FOR A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET, TO A POINT ON THE EXISTING EAST RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF MARDEN ROAD, AS DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 543, PAGE 3 OF THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°15'46" WEST, ALONG THE 
EXISTING EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID MARDEN ROAD, FOR A DISTANCE OF 469.29 
FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID POINT BEING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE 
EXISTING EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID MARDEN ROAD WITH THE EXISTING NORTH 
LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NUMBER 414, AS SHOWN ON THE 
ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP, PROJECT 429-
200, SAID POINT ALSO BEING ON A NON-TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHWEST; 
THENCE RUN SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE EXISTING NORTH LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF SAID STATE ROAD NUMBER 414 AND ALONG SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 
4,360.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 6°30'12", AN ARC LENGTH OF 494.89 FEET, A CHORD 
LENGTH OF 494.62 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 81°10'06" EAST; THENCE RUN 
SOUTH 70°08'59" EAST, ALONG THE EXISTING NORTH LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
SAID STATE ROAD NUMBER 414, FOR A DISTANCE OF 589.24 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 
CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHWEST; THENCE RUN SOUTHEASTERLY 
ALONG THE EXISTING NORTH LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID STATE ROAD 
NUMBER 414 AND ALONG SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 4,320.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE 
OF 3°40'16", AN ARC LENGTH OF 276.79 FEET, A CHORD LENGTH OF 276.74 FEET AND A CHORD 
BEARING OF SOUTH 68°18'51" EAST, TO A POINT AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE EXISTING 
NORTH LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID STATE ROAD NUMBER 414 WITH THE 
EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 
21; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE EXISTING NORTH LIMITED ACCESS 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID STATE ROAD NUMBER 414 AND ALONG SAID CURVE, HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 4,320.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13°02'24", AN ARC LENGTH OF 983.19 FEET, A 
CHORD LENGTH OF 981.07 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 59°57'31" EAST, TO A 
POINT AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE EXISTING NORTH LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 
OF SAID STATE ROAD NUMBER 414 WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF 
THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 21; THENCE RUN NORTH 02°46'48" WEST, FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 96.15 FEET, TO A POINT ON A NON-TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE TO THE 
SOUTHWEST; THENCE RUN NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 
1,731.02 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 7°10'02", AN ARC LENGTH OF 216.54 FEET, A CHORD 
LENGTH OF 216.39 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 50°10'07" WEST; THENCE RUN 
NORTH 65°20'36" WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 328.55 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 71°44'48" 
WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 91.73 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 67°47'09" WEST, FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 477.29 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 62°04'31" WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 100.50 FEET; 
THENCE RUN NORTH 67°00'49" WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 300.03 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 
68°04'05" WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 162.90 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 72°46'45" WEST, FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 147.68 FEET, TO A POINT ON A NON-TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE TO THE 
NORTHEAST; THENCE RUN NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 
1,586.63 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 9°52'36", AN ARC LENGTH OF 273.50 FEET, A CHORD 
LENGTH OF 273.16 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 62°50'51" WEST, TO A POINT OF 
REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHWEST; THENCE RUN 

48



 8 
 

NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 550.39 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE 
OF 19°33'47", AN ARC LENGTH OF 187.92 FEET, A CHORD LENGTH OF 187.01 FEET AND A 
CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 67°41'27" WEST; THENCE RUN SOUTH 10°41'57" WEST, FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 82.86 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 33°26'11" WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 113.21 
FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
TOGETHER WITH ALL RIGHTS OF INGRESS, EGRESS, LIGHT, AIR AND VIEW TO, FROM OR 
ACROSS ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED RIGHT-OF-WAY PROPERTY WHICH MAY OTHERWISE 
ACCRUE TO ANY PROPERTY ADJOINING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY. 
 
TOGETHER WITH: 
 
NORTHEAST CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
ALL RIGHTS OF INGRESS, EGRESS, LIGHT, AIR AND VIEW BETWEEN THE PROPERTIES LYING 
ON EITHER SIDE OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LINE LYING IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
OF SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND 
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCE AT A FOUND RAILROAD SPIKE WITH X-CUT MARKING THE NORTHWEST CORNER 
OF SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE 
RUN SOUTH 88°57'32" EAST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 21, FOR A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET, TO A POINT ON THE EXISTING EAST RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF MARDEN ROAD, AS DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 543, PAGE 3 OF THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°15'46" WEST, ALONG THE 
EXISTING EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID MARDEN ROAD, FOR A DISTANCE OF 114.76 
FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE RUN SOUTH 03°52'56" EAST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 
92.51 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 03°43'15" EAST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 7.30 FEET, TO THE 
POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE EAST; THENCE RUN SOUTHERLY 
ALONG SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 182.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13°35'47", AN 
ARC LENGTH OF 43.19 FEET, A CHORD LENGTH OF 43.09 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF 
SOUTH 10°31'08" EAST; THENCE RUN SOUTH 59°11'36" EAST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 71.64 FEET; 
THENCE RUN SOUTH 10°41'57" WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 82.86 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 
33°26'11" WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 113.21 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TERMINUS, SAID POINT 
BEING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE EXISTING EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID MARDEN 
ROAD WITH THE EXISTING NORTH LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 
NUMBER 414, AS SHOWN ON THE ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP, PROJECT 429-200. 
 
LIMITED ACCESS RIGHTS ONLY ALONG A LINE WITHOUT AREA. 
 
 
 

49



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Preliminary Development Plan – Binion Reserve Subdivision       David 
Moon 

  

50



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Preliminary Development Plan  Aerial Map 

    Site & Landscape Plans 
  
SUBJECT:  BINION RESERVE SUBDIVISION - PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN 

 

REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF BINION RESERVE SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN; AND ISSUE THE PRELIMINARY 

DEVELOPMENT ORDER 
  
SUMMARY:  

 

OWNER:    Gail W. Brown 

 

APPLICANT:    Binion Reserve c/o Rohland A. June 

 

ENGINEER:    June Engineering Consultants, Inc. c/o Jeffrey A. Sedloff, P.E.  

 

LOCATION:   1078 S. Binion Road (South of Lust Road and West of Binion Road) 

 

ZONING:     R-1A (min. 1,600 sq. ft. single family house living area) 

      

FUTURE LAND USE:   Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 

 

EXISTING USE:   Single Family Residence 

 

PROPOSED USE:   Single Family Residential Subdivision (44) Lots 

 

TRACT SIZE:    21.39 +/-   

 

DENSITY:    2.05 Units per gross acre 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  

51



CITY COUNCIL –SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
BINION RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Res. Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) ZIP Vacant Land 

East (City) Res. Low (0-5.0 du/ac) A-1 (ZIP) Single Family Residential 

East (County) Rural (1du/10acres) A-1 Single Family Residential 

South (City) Mixed Use A-1(ZIP) Single Family Residential 

West (City) Res. Low (0-5.0 du/ac) R-1A/R-O-W Vacant Land/S.R. 429 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Binion Reserve Preliminary Development Plan proposes 44 single 
family lots and a 0.51 acre park within 21.39 +/- acres. The park will serve this residential community and 
will be owned and maintained by the homeowners association.    A 10-foot wide landscape buffer with a 
six foot high brick or pre-cast tilt wall is provided along Binion Road, except within Tract I (open space) 
where a six-foot high wrought-iron style fence with brick\masonry post is provided.  Along the western 
project line adjacent to S.R. 429, a 10-foot wide landscape tract with a six-foot high brick or pre-cast tilt 
wall will be provided along the entire project line.   The minimum typical lot width is 85 feet with a 
minimum lot size of 10,000 square feet.  The proposed minimum living area for a house within this 
subdivision is 1,600 square feet.  A ten-foot wide sidewalk easement is reserved for the City of Apopka if 
it chooses to accept this easement at the time of the Final Development Plan.  The sidewalk easement can 
be used for a segment of the East Shore regional multi-use trail. 
 
The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 
 

Setback Min. Standard 

Front 25’* 

Side 10’ 

Rear 20’ 

Corner 25’ 

          *Front load garage shall be setback 30 feet.  

 
Access:  Ingress/egress for the development will be via full access from Binion Road.   
 
Stormwater:  The stormwater management system includes an on-site retention area.  Stormwater ponds 
are located within Tract “A” and Tract “I”. The stormwater ponds design meets the City’s Land 
Development Code requirements. 
 
Recreation: The developer is providing 0.51 acres (22,120 square-feet) of active and passive recreation 
space.  Details of active and passive recreation equipment and facilities will be submitted with the final 
development plan.   
 
Buffer/Tree Program:   A ten-foot wide landscaped buffer easement is provided along the western project 
line adjacent to the S.R. 429 right-of-way with a vinyl fence or a viburnum hedge (which shall be maintained 
at a minimum height of six feet).  A minimum ten-foot wide landscape buffer tract with a six-foot high wall  
along Binion Road except adjacent to the open space area within Tract I, where a six-foot high wrought-
iron style fence with brick\masonry columns will be installed. 
 
 
 52



CITY COUNCIL –SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
BINION RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

The following is a summary of the tree replacement program for this project: 

Total inches on-site:     8561 
Total number of specimen trees:   156 
Total specimen inches retained: 2055 
Total inches replaced:      756 
Total inches removed:    1953 
Total inches retained:    4158 
Total inches post development: 4914 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: No development activity or clearing or grading,  or plat recordation 

can occur until such time that a concurrency mitigation agreement has been approved by Orange County 

Public Schools (OCPS).  

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment 

and rezoning application for this property, and the County receives a copy of the Development Review 

Committee agenda.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

July 12, 2016 - Planning Commission, 5:30 p.m. 
July 20, 2016 – City Council, 7:00 p.m. continued 
August 3, 2016 – City Council, 1:30 p.m. 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Binion Reserve Subdivision - 

Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the findings of the staff report. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on July 12, 2016, unanimously recommended approval of the 

Binion Reserve Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan and the wall waiver requests subject to the 

condition that a viburnum hedge, to be maintained at a minimum height of six feet, be installed on the north 

side of the project along S.R. 429; and subject to the findings in the staff report.  

 

Following the Planning Commission hearing, the applicant amended the landscape plans to meet the 

requirements of the Land Development Code, eliminating any applicant request for waivers. 

  

City Council   Approve the Binion Reserve Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan subject to the 

findings in the staff report, and issue the Preliminary Development Order. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 53



CITY COUNCIL –SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
BINION RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 

Gail Brown c/o Rohland A. June 

June Engineering Consultants, Inc. 

Binion Reserve Subdivision 

 21.39 +/- Acres 

Proposed number of units: 44 single family homes 

                     Parcel ID #: 18-21-28-0000-00-057 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject 

Property 

54



CITY COUNCIL –SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
BINION RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 
  

55



56



57



58



59



60



 

LL-2 
Landscape Plan 

Notes: 

1.  The buffer tract and wall along the western project line shall run to the northwest corner with a tract width consistent with Sheet 3. 

2.  A six-foot high wrought-iron style fence with brick columns and buffer tract, consistent with City code, shall be placed along the 

eastern boundary of Tract I. 

3.  Final landscaping and irrigation with the western and eastern landscape buffer tracts shall be provided with the Final Development 
Plan and landscaping will comply with Sheets 3, L-1 and L-2. 

 

 

61



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Redevelopment Plan/Final Development Plan (Major Site Plan) – Piedmont Plaza - Quasi-Judicial   David 
Moon 

  

62



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Maps 

X OTHER: Major Development Plan  Site/Landscape Plans 

   Building Elevations 

   Parking/Traffic Studies 

   LDC Hardship Waiver 

   Hardship Waiver Response 
  
SUBJECT:    PIEDMONT PLAZA – REDEVELOPMENT PLAN/FINAL DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN (MAJOR SITE PLAN) AND HARDSHIP WAIVERS 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF THE PIEDMONT PLAZA REDEVELOPMENT PLAN/FINAL 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN (MAJOR SITE PLAN) AND HARDSHIP WAIVERS; 

AND ISSUE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT ORDER. 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:   G & I VIII Piedmont Plaza, LLC 
 
ENGINEER:   Sun-Tech Engineering, Inc., c/o Clifford R. Loutan, P.E. 
 
ARCHITECT:   Architecture/Planning, c/o Marc Weiner, AIA 
 
LOCATION: 2326 East Semoran Boulevard 

(South of East Semoran Boulevard and East of Piedmont-Wekiwa Road) 
 

PARCEL ID #S:  12-21-28-0000-00-003, 12-21-28-0000-00-024, 12-21-28-0000-00-025 and  
12-21-28-0000-00-027 

 
LAND USE: Commercial 
 
ZONING: C-1 
 
EXISTING USE: Retail Shopping Center  
 
PROPOSED USE: Retail Shopping Center 
 
TRACT SIZE:   23.07 +/- Acres (1,004,769 S.F.) 
   
BUILDING SIZE: 245,300 S.F. 
 
BUILDING HEIGHT: 65 Feet (max. Building “E”) 
 
FLOOR AREA RATIO: 0.24 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

N/A  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

63



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
PIEDMONT PLAZA – REDEVELOPMENT PLAN/FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial C-1/C-2 Commercial Retail 

East (City) Office PO/I Centurylink Office Complex 

South (City) Commercial C-2 Personal Mini-Storage Complex 

West (City) Residential High/Commercial R-3/C-1 Apartment Complex/Commercial Retail 

         

PROJECT SUMMARY:   Piedmont Plaza currently provides 221,024 sq. ft. of retail space on four parcels under 

three different owners.  After implementation of the Redevelopment Plan, the shopping plaza will have a total of 

245,130 sq. ft., an increase of 24,106 sq. ft. of retail space.  Also, a tree planter will be removed at the northern 

retail building facing Semoran Blvd. and driveway improvements will be constructed at the northern-most 

driveway along Piedmont Wekiwa Road.  The driveway improvements include a north-bound deceleration lane 

along Piedmont Wekiwa Road. 

 

Applicant proposes to redevelop the Piedmont Plaza by demolishing (a) a 27,698 sq. ft. building located between 

the Hobby Lobby building and (b) the Bealls building and the outdoor center on the west side of the Bealls 

building (9,200 sq. ft. covered outdoor storage).  A 17,500 sq. ft. building for retail space for tenant bays will be 

constructed on the north wall of the Bealls building. A two-story fitness center building (38,640 sq. ft.) and a one-

story retail building (13,600 sq. ft.) constructed at the south wall of the Hobby Lobby building.  In addition, a 

new 8,000 sq. ft. retail building is proposed along Piedmont-Wekiwa Road and just south of the retention pond   

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Piedmont Plaza - Major Development Plan proposes 245,130 square feet 

of commercial retail space.  The proposed site plan increases the square footage of the existing shopping center 

by approximately 24,100 sq. ft. and increases the building height of the center  building (i.e., the proposed fitness 

center) to sixty-five (65) feet.  City development standards limit maximum building height to 35 feet.  The 

proposed site plan is being processed as a redevelopment plan in accordance with Section 6.07.00.A., Hardship 

Waiver, of the Land Development Code.  The applicant requests three waivers under Section 6.07.00.A., as 

described below.  The final development plan must be revised and resubmitted to Community Development 

Department to address the revised main entrance to Piedmont-Wekiwa Road prior to scheduling a pre-

construction meeting. 

 

PARKING:  A total of 987 parking spaces are being proposed (1,227 required by Code) of which thirty (30) are 

reserved as handicapped parking spaces.  The number of proposed parking spaces are 240 less the required 

amount.  The applicant is requesting a waiver to adjust the parking requirements in accordance with LDC 

6.07.00.C. The Wartman Group Inc. (WGI) has prepared a parking analysis in response to the applicant’s parking 

waiver request.    

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  The design of the building exterior meets the intent of the City’s Development 

Design Guidelines.  Façade improvements are also proposed for Hobby Lobby buildings and the retail building 

facing Semoran Blvd.  

   

STORMWATER:  Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an on-site retention pond.  The 

on-site stormwater management system is designed according to standards set forth in the Land Development 

Code.  

 

 

64



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
PIEDMONT PLAZA – REDEVELOPMENT PLAN/FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 3 

 

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:   A minimum ten foot landscape buffer is provided along Semoran Boulevard 

and Piedmont Wekiwa Road. The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the property. 

The planting materials and irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape standards 

set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.   
 
The following is a summary of the tree replacement program for this project: 
 
Total inches on-site:     1616 
Total number of specimen trees:     13 
Total specimen removed:         1  
Total specimen inches retained:   408    
Total specimen inches removed:     35 
Total non-specimen inches removed:   356    
Total inches replaced:      216 
Total inches post development: 1441 

 

SIGNS:   Signage for the shopping plaza will be addressed through a separate development application. 

 

WAIVER REQUESTS: The applicant requests three hardship waivers following the procedures set forth in 

Section 6.07.00.A of the Land Development Code.  The hardship waiver is specifically intended to apply to 

redevelopment projects that have existing building(s) at least ten years old.  These three waivers are described 

below with a response from the applicant and from staff. 

 

LDC 6.07.00.A. Hardship Waiver Criteria (also provided in the exhibits) and Response-- 

 

In order for the plan to be eligible for hardship waivers the site must meet all of the following criteria: 

 

1.  Existing structure ten years of age or greater. 

 

 Applicant’s Response: The current structure on the property was built in approximately 1985. 

 Staff’s Response:   Records of the Orange County Property Appraiser’s Office indicate that the buildings 

on the applicant’s parcel were constructed in 1985, making them approximately thirty years old. 

 

2.  The proposed improvements enhance the economic value of the property. 

 

 Applicant’s Response: It is estimated that the assessed value will increase by approximately 2 to 3 times 

the current amount after revitalization of the shopping center. 

 Staff’s Response:  The Redevelopment Plan proposes an additional 24,000 sq. ft. above the current 

building floor area.  Staff does not object to the applicant’s response. 

 

3.  The proposed improvements enhance the esthetics of the project site. 

 

 Applicant’s Response: As part of this redevelopment there will be a new façade on the building and 

additional landscaping, thereby increasing the esthetic value of the property. 

 Staff’s Response:  Staff has not objections to the Applicant’s response. 

 

4.  The developer/owner demonstrates to the satisfaction of the DRC the proposed improvements would not 

adversely impact any surrounding properties. 

 

 

65



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
PIEDMONT PLAZA – REDEVELOPMENT PLAN/FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 4 

 

 Applicant’s Response: The property is surrounded by commercial uses and uses that are similar in nature 

to that of the proposed redevelopment plan.  A copy of the City of Apopka future land use and zoning 

maps are attached as “Exhibit A”. 

 Staff’s Response:  Staff does not object to the applicant’s response.  Refer to each of the waiver requests 

listed below for more specific information 

5. Proposed improvements are less than 50 percent of the value of the property improvements. 

 Applicant’s Response: Please refer to “Exhibit B” for an analysis of the value of the proposed 

improvements versus the property improvements.  The proposed improvements are 45% of the property 

improvements. 

 Staff’s Response:   Staff has no objection to the applicant’s response. 

 

WAIVER REQUESTS: 

 

1. Building Height.  LDC Section 2.02.013.B.  No building height shall exceed 35 feet.  Applicant requests 

a maximum height of 65 feet for Building “E” identified within the Redevelopment Plan Application. 

 

 Staff Response:  The Holiday Inn Express and Hampton Inn were approved for a height of up to 75 feet 

in their PUD Master Plan.  Proximity of the nearest single family residential homes is approximately 1,000 

lineal feet to the southeast within the Piedmont Lakes residential community, and approximately 750 lineal 

feet to the west at the Oasis at Wekiva apartment complex for multi-family residential. 

 

 Staff Response:  Staff does not object to the requested waiver of the maximum height standard to allow 

a maximum building height of 65 feet for Building “E” subject to the City receiving a letter or agreement 

from Agree Apopka FL, LLC accepting the site plan and setback waivers. 

 

2. Setbacks.   LDC Section 2.02.01.A.  Minimum Requirements for Setbacks.    Minimum side yard 

setback for C-1 Commercial Zoning District is 10 feet from the property line.   Applicant requests to 

demolish an existing retail building and replace it with a larger building with a building side wall abutting 

the building wall for the existing Hobby Lobby building, which is on a separate parcel owned by Agree 

Apopka FL, LLC.  For Building “D”, applicant is requesting a waiver from the ten (10) foot side yard 

buffer to create a zero lot line setback. 

 

 For Building “G”, a proposed new 8,000 sq. ft. retail building along Piedmont Wekiwa Road, the northeast 

corner of the building encroaches the ten (10) foot side yard setback and is approximately 2 feet from the 

property line of the Agree Apopka FL, LLC parcel.  Therefore, applicant requests an eight foot waiver 

from the sideyard setback standard, placing Building “G” as close as two (2) feet to the parcel line. 

 

 Staff Response:  Staff does not object to the requested side yard setback waivers subject to the City 

receiving a letter or agreement from Agree Apopka FL, LLC accepting the site plan and setback waivers. 

 

3. Parking.  LDC Section 6.03.02.A.  Required parking is one (1) space per 200 sq. ft. of gross retail area.  

A total of 987 parking spaces are being proposed (1227 required by code) of which thirty (30) are reserved 

as handicapped parking spaces.  In accordance with LDC Section 6.03.05, the number of proposed parking 

spaces are 240 less the required amount.  The applicant is requesting a waiver to adjust the parking 

requirements in accordance with LDC 6.07.00.C. The Wartman Group Inc. (WGI) has prepared a parking 

analysis in response to the applicant’s parking waiver request.   This parking study is provided as an 

exhibit. 

 

 

66



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
PIEDMONT PLAZA – REDEVELOPMENT PLAN/FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 5 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
June 14, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

September 7, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm)  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Piedmont Plaza- Redevelopment Plan/Final 

Development Plan (Major Site Plan) and the three hardship waivers, subject to the findings of this staff report and 

the following conditions: 

 

1. Agree Apopka FL, LLC, or the subsequent property owners, provides written documentation, in a form 

and content acceptable to the City Attorney, that joint use parking and cross access can occur between the 

Agree Apopka FL, LLC parcel and the G & I VIII Piedmont Plaza parcel (applicant). 

 

2. Agree Apopka FL, LLD provides a letter to the City accepting the Redevelopment Plan and the waivers. 

 

The Planning Commission, at a special meeting on June 28, 2016, unanimously recommended approval of the 

Piedmont Plaza- Redevelopment Plan/Final Development Plan (Major Site Plan) and the three hardship waivers, 

subject to the findings of this staff report and the following conditions: 

 

1. Agree Apopka FL, LLC, or the subsequent property owners, provides written documentation, in a form 

and content acceptable to the City Attorney, that joint use parking and cross access can occur between the 

Agree Apopka FL, LLC parcel and the G & I VIII Piedmont Plaza parcel (applicant). 

 

2. Agree Apopka FL, LLD provides a letter to the City accepting the Redevelopment Plan and the hardship 

waivers. 

 

3. The northern-most entrance along Piedmont-Wekiwa Road shall be re-designed as follows: 

 

a) The northern-most driveway access to Piedmont-Wekiwa road shall be re-aligned to be perpendicular 

at the stop bar to the centerline of Piedmont-Wekiwa Road. The channelizing median of this driveway 

must be at least 8 feet wide to allow for landscaping, inside of curb to inside of curb. 

 

b) The northern most driveway access to Piedmont-Wekiwa Road shall be marked and signed consistent 

with the MUTCD 3B-17 to indicate to drivers not to block the driveway access point. 

 

Note: Following the Planning Commission hearing, the applicant provided written documentation from Agree 

Apopka FL LLC, which was reviewed and found acceptable by the city attorney’s office; thus eliminating the 

need for conditions one and two.  Applicant also revised the design of the northern most driveway along 

Piedmont-Wekiwa Road, eliminating a need for the third condition. 

 

City Council:  Approve the Piedmont Plaza Redevelopment Plan and the three Hardship Waiver requests for the 

building maximum height, minimum number of parking spaces, and building setbacks. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 67



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
PIEDMONT PLAZA – REDEVELOPMENT PLAN/FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 6 

 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner:   G & VIII Piedmont Plaza, LLC 

Engineer:  Sun- Tech Engineering, Inc. c/o Clifford R. Loutan, P.E.  

Architect:  Architecture/Planning c/o Marc Wiener, A.I.A. 
Parcel I.D. No’s:    12-21-28-0000-00-003, 12-21-28-0000-00-024 and 12-21-28-0000-00-025 
Location:  2326 East Semoran Boulevard 
Total Acres:  23.07 +/- Acres 

 
 
 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

68



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
PIEDMONT PLAZA – REDEVELOPMENT PLAN/FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 7 

 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner:   G & VIII Piedmont Plaza, LLC 

Engineer:  Sun- Tech Engineering, Inc. c/o Clifford R. Loutan, P.E.  

Architect:  Architecture/Planning c/o Marc Wiener, A.I.A. 
Parcel I.D. No’s:    12-21-28-0000-00-003, 12-21-28-0000-00-024 and 12-21-28-0000-00-025 
Location:  2326 East Semoran Boulevard 
Total Acres:  23.07 +/- Acres 

 

 
 

AERIAL MAP 

 

  

69



70



71



72



w
w

w
.
s
u
n
t
e
c
h
e
n
g
.
c
o
m

1
6
0
0
 
W

e
s
t
 
O

a
k
l
a
n
d
 
P

a
r
k
 
B

o
u
l
e
v
a
r
d

F
t
.
 
L
a
u
d
e
r
d
a
l
e
,
 
 
F

L
 
 
3
3
3
1
1

R
 
E

 
V

 
I
 
S

 
I
 
O

 
N

 
S

F
a
x
 
 
 
(
9
5
4
)
7
7
7
-
3
1
1
4

P
h
o
n
e
 
(
9
5
4
)
7
7
7
-
3
1
2
3

Su
n-

Te
ch

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 In
c.

E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
s
 
 
-
 
 
P

l
a
n
n
e
r
s
 
 
-
 
 
S

u
r
v
e
y
o
r
s

SEAL

DRAWN BY:

JOB NUMBER

SHEET No.

DESIGNED BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

C
e
r
t
i
f
i
c
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
A

u
t
h
.
 
#
 
7
0
9
7

P
I
E

D
M

O
N

T
 
 
P

L
A

Z
A

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
A

P
O

P
K

A
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

Aug. 2016

1"=50'

M.G.

M.A.S.

16-3755

SP1

201616Aug

73



w
w

w
.
s
u
n
t
e
c
h
e
n
g
.
c
o
m

1
6
0
0
 
W

e
s
t
 
O

a
k
l
a
n
d
 
P

a
r
k
 
B

o
u
l
e
v
a
r
d

F
t
.
 
L
a
u
d
e
r
d
a
l
e
,
 
 
F

L
 
 
3
3
3
1
1

R
 
E

 
V

 
I
 
S

 
I
 
O

 
N

 
S

F
a
x
 
 
 
(
9
5
4
)
7
7
7
-
3
1
1
4

P
h
o
n
e
 
(
9
5
4
)
7
7
7
-
3
1
2
3

Su
n-

Te
ch

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 In
c.

E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
s
 
 
-
 
 
P

l
a
n
n
e
r
s
 
 
-
 
 
S

u
r
v
e
y
o
r
s

SEAL

DRAWN BY:

JOB NUMBER

SHEET No.

DESIGNED BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

C
e
r
t
i
f
i
c
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
A

u
t
h
.
 
#
 
7
0
9
7

P
I
E

D
M

O
N

T
 
P

L
A

Z
A

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
K

E
Y

 
M

A
P

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
A

P
O

P
K

A
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

Aug. 2016

1"=50'

M.G.

M.A.S.

16-3755

SP2

201618Aug

74



w
w

w
.
s
u
n
t
e
c
h
e
n
g
.
c
o
m

1
6
0
0
 
W

e
s
t
 
O

a
k
l
a
n
d
 
P

a
r
k
 
B

o
u
l
e
v
a
r
d

F
t
.
 
L
a
u
d
e
r
d
a
l
e
,
 
 
F

L
 
 
3
3
3
1
1

R
 
E

 
V

 
I
 
S

 
I
 
O

 
N

 
S

F
a
x
 
 
 
(
9
5
4
)
7
7
7
-
3
1
1
4

P
h
o
n
e
 
(
9
5
4
)
7
7
7
-
3
1
2
3

Su
n-

Te
ch

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 In
c.

E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
s
 
 
-
 
 
P

l
a
n
n
e
r
s
 
 
-
 
 
S

u
r
v
e
y
o
r
s

SEAL

DRAWN BY:

JOB NUMBER

SHEET No.

DESIGNED BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

C
e
r
t
i
f
i
c
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
A

u
t
h
.
 
#
 
7
0
9
7

P
I
E

D
M

O
N

T
 
P

L
A

Z
A

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
A

P
O

P
K

A
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

Aug. 2016

1"=30'

M.G.

M.A.S.

16-3755

SP3

201618Aug

MATCH LINE  "A-A" (FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET SP4)

M
A

T
C

H
 
L

I
N

E
 
 
"
B

-
B

"
 
(
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

T
I
N

U
A

T
I
O

N
 
S

E
E

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
S

P
5

)

75



w
w

w
.
s
u
n
t
e
c
h
e
n
g
.
c
o
m

1
6
0
0
 
W

e
s
t
 
O

a
k
l
a
n
d
 
P

a
r
k
 
B

o
u
l
e
v
a
r
d

F
t
.
 
L
a
u
d
e
r
d
a
l
e
,
 
 
F

L
 
 
3
3
3
1
1

R
 
E

 
V

 
I
 
S

 
I
 
O

 
N

 
S

F
a
x
 
 
 
(
9
5
4
)
7
7
7
-
3
1
1
4

P
h
o
n
e
 
(
9
5
4
)
7
7
7
-
3
1
2
3

Su
n-

Te
ch

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 In
c.

E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
s
 
 
-
 
 
P

l
a
n
n
e
r
s
 
 
-
 
 
S

u
r
v
e
y
o
r
s

SEAL

DRAWN BY:

JOB NUMBER

SHEET No.

DESIGNED BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

C
e
r
t
i
f
i
c
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
A

u
t
h
.
 
#
 
7
0
9
7

P
I
E

D
M

O
N

T
 
P

L
A

Z
A

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
A

P
O

P
K

A
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

Aug. 2016

1"=30'

M.G.

M.A.S.

16-3755

SP4

201618Aug

MATCH LINE  "A-A" (FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET SP3)

M
A

T
C

H
 
L

I
N

E
 
 
"
B

-
B

"
 
(
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

T
I
N

U
A

T
I
O

N
 
S

E
E

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
S

P
6

)

76



w
w

w
.
s
u
n
t
e
c
h
e
n
g
.
c
o
m

1
6
0
0
 
W

e
s
t
 
O

a
k
l
a
n
d
 
P

a
r
k
 
B

o
u
l
e
v
a
r
d

F
t
.
 
L
a
u
d
e
r
d
a
l
e
,
 
 
F

L
 
 
3
3
3
1
1

R
 
E

 
V

 
I
 
S

 
I
 
O

 
N

 
S

F
a
x
 
 
 
(
9
5
4
)
7
7
7
-
3
1
1
4

P
h
o
n
e
 
(
9
5
4
)
7
7
7
-
3
1
2
3

Su
n-

Te
ch

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 In
c.

E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
s
 
 
-
 
 
P

l
a
n
n
e
r
s
 
 
-
 
 
S

u
r
v
e
y
o
r
s

SEAL

DRAWN BY:

JOB NUMBER

SHEET No.

DESIGNED BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

C
e
r
t
i
f
i
c
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
A

u
t
h
.
 
#
 
7
0
9
7

P
I
E

D
M

O
N

T
 
P

L
A

Z
A

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
A

P
O

P
K

A
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

Aug. 2016

1"=30'

M.G.

M.A.S.

16-3755

SP5

201618Aug

MATCH LINE  "A-A" (FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET SP6)

M
A

T
C

H
 
L

I
N

E
 
 
"
B

-
B

"
 
(
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

T
I
N

U
A

T
I
O

N
 
S

E
E

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
S

P
3

)

77



w
w

w
.
s
u
n
t
e
c
h
e
n
g
.
c
o
m

1
6
0
0
 
W

e
s
t
 
O

a
k
l
a
n
d
 
P

a
r
k
 
B

o
u
l
e
v
a
r
d

F
t
.
 
L
a
u
d
e
r
d
a
l
e
,
 
 
F

L
 
 
3
3
3
1
1

R
 
E

 
V

 
I
 
S

 
I
 
O

 
N

 
S

F
a
x
 
 
 
(
9
5
4
)
7
7
7
-
3
1
1
4

P
h
o
n
e
 
(
9
5
4
)
7
7
7
-
3
1
2
3

Su
n-

Te
ch

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 In
c.

E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
s
 
 
-
 
 
P

l
a
n
n
e
r
s
 
 
-
 
 
S

u
r
v
e
y
o
r
s

SEAL

DRAWN BY:

JOB NUMBER

SHEET No.

DESIGNED BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

C
e
r
t
i
f
i
c
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
A

u
t
h
.
 
#
 
7
0
9
7

P
I
E

D
M

O
N

T
 
P

L
A

Z
A

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
A

P
O

P
K

A
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

Aug. 2016

1"=30'

M.G.

M.A.S.

16-3755

SP6

201618Aug

MATCH LINE  "A-A" (FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET SP5)

M
A

T
C

H
 
L

I
N

E
 
 
"
B

-
B

"
 
(
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

T
I
N

U
A

T
I
O

N
 
S

E
E

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
S

P
4

)

78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2513 – First Reading – Annexation - Legislative       
 Rogers Beckett 

  

133



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Ordinance No. 2513 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3  

   

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2513 – ANNEXATION - CENTRAL 

FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND 

READING & ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  Central Florida Expressway Authority 

 

LOCATION:  West of Plymouth Sorrento Road and South of Yothers Road 

 

LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

TRACT SIZE:  0.30 +/- acre 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County 
Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning 
designation will occur at a later date, and through action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on August 19, 
2016. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 26, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
September 2, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
September 9, 2016 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 7, 2016 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
September 21, 2016 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

134



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 
PAGE 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2016 Annexation – Cycle No. 3 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2513, and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
September 21, 2016. 
 

135



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2016 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 

TOTAL ACRES:  5.77+/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2513 -2517 

Adopted this 21st day of SEPTEMBER, 2016 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

 
 

2513 

 
 

1 
CENTRAL FLORIDA 

EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
PLYMOUTH SORRENTO ROAD 

36-20-27-0000-00-124 
36-20-27-0000-00-126 

0.15 
0.15 
0.30 

VACANT LAND 
RURAL 1DU/10ACRES/ 

AGRICULTURAL 

 
 

2514 

 
 

2 
CHARLES L. KOHL 

KATHY E. KOHL 
1030 EAST SANDPIPER STREET 02-21-28-0000-00-112 1.79 SFR 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2515 
 
 

 
 

3 
DEBBIE NELSON 
BRYAN NELSON 

1157 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 
02-21-28-9090-00-020 

 
1.27 

SFR 
 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2516 

 
 

4 
WILLIAM D. COOK TRUST 
ROBYN D. COOK TRUST 

1163 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 02-21-28-9090-00-010 1.27 SFR 
LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2517 

 

5 VERDUZCO INVESTMENT, LLC 1175 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 02-21-28-7328-00-080 1.14 SFR 
LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2016 Cycle 3 Spreadsheet  

   

136



ORDINANCE NO. 2513 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
LOCATED WEST OF PLYMOUTH SORRENTO ROAD AND SOUTH OF 
YOTHERS ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS,  Central Florida Expressway Authority, owner thereof, has petitioned the 

City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property located west of Plymouth 

Sorrento Road and south of Yothers Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 

municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 

owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 

redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 

Florida, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby annexed into the City of 

Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida 

Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

Comm At Ne Cor Of Se1/4 Of Sec 36-20-27 T S89-28-38w 278.71 Ft Along N 

Line Of Ne1/4 Of Se1/4 To Pob Th S00-27-45e 20.1 Ft To Pt On S Line Of N 20 

Ft Of E 300 Ft Of Ne1/4 Of Se1/4 Th S89-27-24w 20.58 Ft Th S37-23-29w 106.13 

Ft Along Ely Lines Of Lands Desc In 6077/2248 Th N52-36-26w 29.99 Ft Th N00-

31-19w 85.41 Ft To Pt On Aforesaid N Line Th N89-28-38e 109.48 Ft To Pob. 

Containing: 0.15 acre;  

and 

Comm At Ne Cor Of Se1/4 Of Sec 36-20-27 Th S02-14-21e 20.01 Ft To Pt On S 

Line Of N 20 Ft Of E 300 Ft Of Ne1/4 Of Se1/4 Th S89-27-24w 279.34 Ft To Pob 

Th S00-27-45e 114.23 Ft Th S89-31-59w 46.60 Ft Th N52-36-26w 49.54 Ft To Pt 

On Wly Line Of Lands Desc In Or 8943/2342 Th N37-23-29e 106.13 Ft To A Pt 

On Aforesaid S Line Th N89-27-24e 20.58 Ft To Pob. Containing 0.15 +/- acre 

 

Containing: 0.30 acres 

 

137



ORDINANCE NO. 2513 

PAGE 2 

 

SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 

hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 

category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 

described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 

the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 

for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 

of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 26, 2016 

September 2, 2016 

September 9, 2016  

 
READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     September 21, 2016 
 
 
 
 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 

138



 

ANNEXATION 

CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 

             

     

         Exhibit “A”                  

         Ord. # 2513 

         Parcel ID: 36-20-27-0000-00-0124  

            36-20-27-0000-00-0126 

      

 Total Acres: 0.30 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

139



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2514 – First Reading – Annexation - Legislative       
 Rogers Beckett 

  

140



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Ordinance No. 2514 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 

   

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2514 – ANNEXATION - CHARLES 

L. KOHL AND KATHY E. KOHL; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND 

READING & ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  Charles L. Kohl and Kathy L. Kohl 

 

LOCATION:  1030 East Sandpiper Street 

 

LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

TRACT SIZE:  1.79 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County 
Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning 
designation will occur at a later date, and through action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on April 1, 
2016. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 26, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
September 2, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
September 9, 2016 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 7, 2016 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
September 21, 2016 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

141



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 
PAGE 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2016 Annexation – Cycle No. 3 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2514, and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
September 21, 2016. 
 

142



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2016 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 

TOTAL ACRES:  5.77+/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2513 -2517 

Adopted this 21st day of SEPTEMBER, 2016 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

 
 

2513 

 
 

1 
CENTRAL FLORIDA 

EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
PLYMOUTH SORRENTO ROAD 

36-20-27-0000-00-124 
36-20-27-0000-00-126 

0.15 
0.15 
0.30 

VACANT LAND 
RURAL 1DU/10ACRES/ 

AGRICULTURAL 

 
 

2514 

 
 

2 
CHARLES L. KOHL 

KATHY E. KOHL 
1030 EAST SANDPIPER STREET 02-21-28-0000-00-112 1.79 SFR 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2515 
 
 

 
 

3 
DEBBIE NELSON 
BRYAN NELSON 

1157 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 
02-21-28-9090-00-020 

 
1.27 

SFR 
 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2516 

 
 

4 
WILLIAM D. COOK TRUST 
ROBYN D. COOK TRUST 

1163 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 02-21-28-9090-00-010 1.27 SFR 
LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2517 

 

5 VERDUZCO INVESTMENT, LLC 1175 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 02-21-28-7328-00-080 1.14 SFR 
LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2016 Cycle 3 Spreadsheet  

   

143



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2514 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 
TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO 
FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS 
SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY 
CHARLES L. KOHL AND KATHY E. KOHL LOCATED AT 1030 EAST 
SANDPIPER STREET; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Charles L. Kohl and Kathy E. Kohl, owner thereof, has petitioned the City Council of 

the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property located at 1030 East Sandpiper Street; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a municipal 

corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the owners, by passing 

and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and redefining 

the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, as 

follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, Florida, 

and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, 

pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable 

laws: 

 

Legal Description: 

N 342 FT OF W 250 FT OF NE1/4 OF SW1/4 OF NW1/4 (LESS N 30 FT FOR RD) OF 

SEC 02-21-28  

CONTAINING: 1.79 ACRES 

 

SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are hereby 

redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning category 

of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein described 

shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, ordinances and 

regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to 

be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force, or 

effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 

144



ORDINANCE NO.: 2514 

PAGE 2  
 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter the City 

Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange County, 

Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 26, 2016 

September 2, 2016 

September 9, 2016  

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     September 21, 2016 
 
 
 
 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 

145



ORDINANCE NO.: 2514 

PAGE 2  
 

ANNEXATION 

CHARLES L. KOHL AND KATHY E. KOHL 

             

     

         Exhibit “A”                  

         Ord. # 2514 

         Parcel ID: 02-21-28-0000-00-112  

             

      

 Total Acres: 1.79 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

146



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2515 – First Reading – Annexation - Legislative       
 Rogers Beckett 

  

147



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER:  Ordinance    Ordinance No. 2515 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 

   

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2515 – ANNEXATION - BRYAN 

NELSON AND DEBBIE NELSON; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND 

READING & ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  Bryan Nelson and Debbie Nelson 
 
LOCATION:  1157 Oakpoint Circle 
 
LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 
 
EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 
 
TRACT SIZE:  1.27 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County 
Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning 
designation will occur at a later date, and through action by the City Council. 
 
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
“With regards to the three parcels located on Oakpoint Circle, the only comment we have concerns 
sanitation services.  Since we are not currently providing sanitation in this area, it may present a hardship 
for our Sanitation Division to take on only these three parcels of the subdivision.”   
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on August 19, 
2016. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 26, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
September 2, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
September 9, 2016 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 7, 2016 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
September 21, 2016 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

148



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 
PAGE 2 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2016 Annexation – Cycle No. 3 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2515, and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
September 21, 2016. 
 

149



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2016 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 

TOTAL ACRES:  5.77+/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2513 -2517 

Adopted this 21st day of SEPTEMBER, 2016 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

 
 

2513 

 
 

1 
CENTRAL FLORIDA 

EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
PLYMOUTH SORRENTO ROAD 

36-20-27-0000-00-124 
36-20-27-0000-00-126 

0.15 
0.15 
0.30 

VACANT LAND 
RURAL 1DU/10ACRES/ 

AGRICULTURAL 

 
 

2514 

 
 

2 
CHARLES L. KOHL 

KATHY E. KOHL 
1030 EAST SANDPIPER STREET 02-21-28-0000-00-112 1.79 SFR 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2515 
 
 

 
 

3 
DEBBIE NELSON 
BRYAN NELSON 

1157 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 
02-21-28-9090-00-020 

 
1.27 

SFR 
 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2516 

 
 

4 
WILLIAM D. COOK TRUST 
ROBYN D. COOK TRUST 

1163 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 02-21-28-9090-00-010 1.27 SFR 
LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2517 

 

5 VERDUZCO INVESTMENT, LLC 1175 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 02-21-28-7328-00-080 1.14 SFR 
LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2016 Cycle 3 Spreadsheet  

   

150



ORDINANCE NO. 2515 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY BRYAN NELSON AND DEBBIE NELSON LOCATED AT 
1157 OAKPOINT CIRCLE; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 
CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Bryan Nelson and Debbie Nelson, owner thereof, has petitioned the City 

Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property located at 1157 Oakpoint Circle; 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 

municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 

owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 

redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 

Florida, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby annexed into the City of 

Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida 

Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Description: 

WEKIVA LANDING SUB 14/43 LOT 2  

CONTAINING: 1.27 ACRES 

 

SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 

hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 

category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 

described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

 

 

151



ORDINANCE NO.: 2515 

PAGE 2  
 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 

the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 

for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 

of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 26, 2016 

September 2, 2016 

September 9, 2016  

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     September 21, 2016 
 
 
 
 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 

152



ORDINANCE NO.: 2515 

PAGE 2  
 

ANNEXATION 

BRYAN NELSON AND DEBBIE NELSON 

1157 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 

     

         Exhibit “A”                  

         Ord. # 2516 

         Parcel ID: 02-21-28-9090-00-020 

             

      

 Total Acres: 1.27 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

153



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2516 – First Reading – Annexation - Legislative       
 Rogers Beckett 

  

154



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER:  Ordinance    Ordinance No. 2516 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 

   

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2516 – ANNEXATION - WILLIAM 

D. COOK AND ROBYN D. COOK TRUST; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND 

READING & ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  William D. Cook and Robyn D. Cook Trust  
 
LOCATION:  1163 Oakpoint Circle 
 
LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 
 
EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 
 
TRACT SIZE:  1.27 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County 
Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning 
designation will occur at a later date, and through action by the City Council. 
 
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT:  “With regards to the three parcels located on Oakpoint Circle, 
the only comment we have concerns sanitation services.  Since we are not currently providing sanitation in 
this area, it may present a hardship for our Sanitation Division to take on only these three parcels of the 
subdivision.”   
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on August 19, 
2016. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 26, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
September 2, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
September 9, 2016 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 7, 2016 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
September 21, 2016 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

155



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 
PAGE 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2016 Annexation – Cycle No. 3 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2516, and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
September 21, 2016. 
 

156



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2016 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 

TOTAL ACRES:  5.77+/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2513 -2517 

Adopted this 21st day of SEPTEMBER, 2016 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

 
 

2513 

 
 

1 
CENTRAL FLORIDA 

EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
PLYMOUTH SORRENTO ROAD 

36-20-27-0000-00-124 
36-20-27-0000-00-126 

0.15 
0.15 
0.30 

VACANT LAND 
RURAL 1DU/10ACRES/ 

AGRICULTURAL 

 
 

2514 

 
 

2 
CHARLES L. KOHL 

KATHY E. KOHL 
1030 EAST SANDPIPER STREET 02-21-28-0000-00-112 1.79 SFR 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2515 
 
 

 
 

3 
DEBBIE NELSON 
BRYAN NELSON 

1157 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 
02-21-28-9090-00-020 

 
1.27 

SFR 
 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2516 

 
 

4 
WILLIAM D. COOK TRUST 
ROBYN D. COOK TRUST 

1163 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 02-21-28-9090-00-010 1.27 SFR 
LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2517 

 

5 VERDUZCO INVESTMENT, LLC 1175 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 02-21-28-7328-00-080 1.14 SFR 
LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2016 Cycle 3 Spreadsheet  

   

157



ORDINANCE NO. 2516 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY WILLIAM D. COOK AND ROBYN D. COOK TRUST 
LOCATED AT 1163 OAKPOINT CIRCLE; PROVIDING FOR 
DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, William D. Cook and Robyn D. Cook Trust, owner thereof, has petitioned the 

City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property located at 1163 Oakpoint Circle; 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 

municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 

owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 

redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 

Florida, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby annexed into the City of 

Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida 

Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Description: 

WEKIVA LANDING SUB 14/43 LOT 1  

CONTAINING: 1.27 ACRES 

 

SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 

hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and 

zoning category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State 

laws. 

 

SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 

described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, 

laws, ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

 

158



ORDINANCE NO.: 2516 

PAGE 2  
 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, 

thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit 

Court in and for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the 

Department of State of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 26, 2016 

September 2, 2016 

September 9, 2016  

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     September 21, 2016 
 
 
 
 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 

159



ORDINANCE NO.: 2516 

PAGE 2  
 

ANNEXATION 

WILLIAM D. COOK AND ROBY D. COOK TRUST 

1163 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 

     

         Exhibit “A”                  

         Ord. # 2516 

         Parcel ID: 02-21-28-9090-00-010 

             

      

 Total Acres: 1.27 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

Subject Property 

160



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2517 – First Reading – Annexation - Legislative       
 Rogers Beckett 

  

161



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER: Ordinance    Ordinance No. 2517 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 

   

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2517 – ANNEXATION - VERDUZCO 

INVESTMENT, INC; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING & 

ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  Verduzco Investment, Inc. 
 
LOCATION:  1175 Oakpoint Circle 
 
LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 
 
EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 
 
TRACT SIZE:  1.14 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County 
Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning 
designation will occur at a later date, and through action by the City Council. 
 
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT:  “With regards to the three parcels located on Oakpoint Circle, 
the only comment we have concerns sanitation services.  Since we are not currently providing sanitation in 
this area, it may present a hardship for our Sanitation Division to take on only these three parcels of the 
subdivision.”   
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on August 24, 
2016. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 26, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
September 2, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
September 9, 2016 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 7, 2016 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
September 21, 2016 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

162



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 
PAGE 2 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2016 Annexation – Cycle No. 3 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2517, and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
September 21, 2016. 
 

163



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2016 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 

TOTAL ACRES:  5.77+/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2513 -2517 

Adopted this 21st day of SEPTEMBER, 2016 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

 
 

2513 

 
 

1 
CENTRAL FLORIDA 

EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
PLYMOUTH SORRENTO ROAD 

36-20-27-0000-00-124 
36-20-27-0000-00-126 

0.15 
0.15 
0.30 

VACANT LAND 
RURAL 1DU/10ACRES/ 

AGRICULTURAL 

 
 

2514 

 
 

2 
CHARLES L. KOHL 

KATHY E. KOHL 
1030 EAST SANDPIPER STREET 02-21-28-0000-00-112 1.79 SFR 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2515 
 
 

 
 

3 
DEBBIE NELSON 
BRYAN NELSON 

1157 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 
02-21-28-9090-00-020 

 
1.27 

SFR 
 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2516 

 
 

4 
WILLIAM D. COOK TRUST 
ROBYN D. COOK TRUST 

1163 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 02-21-28-9090-00-010 1.27 SFR 
LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2517 

 

5 VERDUZCO INVESTMENT, LLC 1175 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 02-21-28-7328-00-080 1.14 SFR 
LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2016 Cycle 3 Spreadsheet  

   

164



ORDINANCE NO. 2517 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY VERDUZCO INVESTMENT, INC., LOCATED AT 1175 
OAKPOINT CIRCLE; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Verduzco Investment, Inc., owner thereof, has petitioned the City Council of 

the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property located at 1175 Oakpoint Circle; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 

municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 

owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 

redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 

Florida, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby annexed into the City of 

Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida 

Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Description: 

RAVENS HAVEN 7/12 LOT 8 

CONTAINING: 1.14 ACRES 

 

SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 

hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 

category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 

described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

165



ORDINANCE NO.: 2517 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 

the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 

for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 

of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 26, 2016 

September 2, 2016 

September 9, 2016  

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     September 21, 2016 
 
 
 
 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 

166



ORDINANCE NO.: 2517 

PAGE 3 
 

ANNEXATION 

VERDUZCO INVESTMENT, INC. 

1175 OAKPOINT CIRCLE 

     

         Exhibit “A”                  

         Ord. # 2517 

         Parcel ID: 02-21-28-7326-00-080 

             

      

 Total Acres: 1.14 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

167



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2503 – First Reading – Land Development Code – Ex Parte Contact – Legislative   Mark 
Reggentin 

  

168



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Ordinance No. 2503 

X OTHER:  Ordinance     
  
SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2503 - AMENDING THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 

CODE. 
    
REQUEST:  ACCEPT FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2503 – TO ADOPT EX-

PARTE COMMUNICATION RULES AND PROCEDURES. 
 

SUMMARY:  
 
It has been the recent policy of the city to allow ex’parte communication between elected and appointed 
board members and the public.  This policy is based upon the belief that the public should be able to voice 
their opinions on quasi-judicial matters to city officials prior to a public hearing on the issue.  In order to 
address this concern on a state wide basis, the legislature enacted Section 286.0115 of the Florida Statutes 
to address a process for disclosure of ex’parte communications and without a presumption of prejudice.   
 
During a review of the Land Development Code, it was discovered that Section1.01.10 of the Land 
Development Code specifically prohibits ex’parte communications.  Based upon the standing policy and 
practice of the city, ex’parte communications have been allowed following the procedures outlined in the 
statutes.  To rectify this inconsistency, staff has prepared an amendment to the Land Development Code to 
address ex’parte communications, and disclosure procedures. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
August 9, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm)  
September 7, 2016 - City Council 1st Reading (1:30 pm)  
September 21, 2016 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
July 29, 2016 – Public Hearing Notice 
August 26, 2016 – Ordinance Heading  
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  

169



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
EX’PARTE CONTACT 
PAGE 2 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the amendment to the City of Apopka, 

Code of Ordinances, Part III, Article I, Section 1.01.01 – Ex Parte Contact to adopt provisions to provide 

access to public officials of the City of Apopka regarding quasi-judicial matters by removing prohibitions 

on ex-parte communications; establishing procedures to disclose ex-parte communications pursuant to 

section 286.0115, Florida Statutes; creating procedures for the disclosure of ex-parte communications, 

investigations, site visits, and expert opinions to remove the presumption of prejudice arising therefrom.  

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on August 9, 2016, unanimously recommended approval of the 

amendment to the City of Apopka, Code of Ordinances, Part III, Article I, Section 1.01.01 – Ex Parte 

Contact to adopt provisions to provide access to public officials of the City of Apopka regarding quasi-

judicial matters by removing prohibitions on ex-parte communications; establishing procedures to disclose 

ex-parte communications pursuant to section 286.0115, Florida Statutes; creating procedures for the 

disclosure of ex-parte communications, investigations, site visits, and expert opinions to remove the 

presumption of prejudice arising therefrom. 

 

Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2503 and Hold it over for Second Reading and Adoption on 

September 21, 2016. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its 

findings are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting.  

170



ORDINANCE NO. 2503 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA,  AMENDING THE 

APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, PART III, LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, 

ARTICLE I, TO ADOPT PROVISIONS TO PROVIDE ACCESS TO PUBLIC 

OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF APOPKA REGARDING QUASI-JUDICIAL 

MATTERS BY REMOVING PROHIBITIONS ON EX-PARTE 

COMMUNICATIONS; ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES TO DISCLOSE EX-

PARTE COMMUNICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0115, FLORIDA 

STATUTES; CREATING PROCEDURES FOR THE DISCLOSURE OF EX-

PARTE COMMUNICATIONS, INVESTIGATIONS, SITE VISITS, AND 

EXPERT OPINIONS TO REMOVE THE PRESUMPTION OF PREJUDICE 

ARISING THEREFROM; AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka believes that it is in the best interest of the 

City for the public to be able to voice its opinions regarding quasi-judicial matters to the elected and 

appointed public officials of the City of Apopka; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 286.0115, Florida Statutes, creates procedures to disclose ex-parte 

communications to allow public access to local public officials without a presumption of prejudice 

arising from such ex-parte communications; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka finds it in the best interest of the City of 

Apopka to adopt procedures for the disclosure of ex-parte communications as set forth in Section 

286.0115, Florida Statutes so as to remove the presumption of prejudice arising therefrom. 

 

LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING:  Underlined words constitute additions to the City of Apopka 

Land Development Code, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks (***) 

indicate an omission from the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1.  Section 1.01.01, “Ex Parte Contacts” of the City of Apopka Land Development 

Code is hereby deleted in its entirety:  

 

Sec. 1.01.01. - Ex parte contacts.  

 

Except as otherwise provided by law, ex parte contacts by city council members or the members 

of other boards, commissions, or agencies of the city are prohibited with regard to administrative or 

quasijudicial matters pending before said body.  

171



ORDINANCE NO. 2503 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 

 SECTION 2.  Article 12.09.00, “Ex-Parte Communications” of the City of Apopka Land 

Development Code is hereby created as follows: 

Sec. 12.09.01. Purpose. 

 

The purpose of this Section is to establish procedures, to remove the presumption of prejudice 

from ex parte communications, that is, any communication which occurs outside of a public hearing, 

with local public officials who are members of any City of Apopka board, agency or commission, 

including the City Council, which recommends or takes quasi-judicial action as a member of such 

board, agency, authority, commission or City Council. Further, the purpose of this Part is to entitle the 

public officials of the City of Apopka and its citizens to all of the benefits available pursuant to 

286.0115, Florida Statutes.  

 

Sec. 12.09.02. Definitions. 

 

As used herein: 

 

(a) ‘Ex-parte communication’ means any form of communication, either oral or written, 

including any other form of non-verbal communication, with public officials which 

occurs outside of a public hearing. Such communications include, but are not limited 

to: conversations, meetings, site visits, mailings, or presentations during which 

substantial factual information about an item is gathered by or submitted to a local 

public official. 

 

(b) ‘Local public official’ or ‘public official’ means any elected or appointed public 

official of a City of Apopka board, agency, authority or commission, including the 

City Council, which recommends or takes quasi-judicial action. 

 

(c) ‘Quasi-judicial’ is a term which applies to the action of public officials or bodies who 

are required to investigate facts, or ascertain the existence of facts, hold hearings, 

weigh evidence and draw conclusions from them, as a basis for their official action, 

and to exercise discretion of a judicial nature.   

 

Sec. 12.09.03. Applicability. 

 

This Part shall apply to any and all quasi-judicial proceedings of all commissions, boards and 

agencies of the City of Apopka and the City Council.  

 

Sec. 12.09.04. Access Permitted.  

 

 Any person not otherwise prohibited by statute, charter provision, or ordinance may discuss 

with any member of a board, agency, council, or commission of the City of Apopka the merits of any 

172



ORDINANCE NO. 2503 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

matter on which action may be taken by such board, agency, council, or commission.  Adherence to the 

following procedures shall remove the presumption of prejudice arising from ex-parte communications 

regarding quasi-judicial matters provided that any disclosure made pursuant to (a), (b), or (c) below 

must be made before or during the public meeting at which a vote is taken on such matters so that 

persons who have opinions contrary to those expressed in the ex-parte communications are given a 

reasonable opportunity to refute or respond to the communications.  

 

(a) Any public official who has verbal ex-parte communications on quasi-judicial matters 

pending before his or her board, agency, council, or commission shall disclose and make 

a part of the public record the subject of the verbal communications and the identity of 

the person, group, or entity with whom the communications took place.  

 

(b) Any public official who receives written ex-parte communications on quasi-judicial 

matters pending before his or her board, agency, council, or commission shall make 

such written communications a part of the public records by stating the subject of the 

communications and the person, group, or entity from which the communications were 

received and providing a copy of the written communications to recording secretary for 

inclusion in the public record.  

 

(c) Any public official who conducts any investigations or site visits or who receives any 

expert opinions regarding quasi-judicial matters pending before his or her board, 

agency, council, or commission shall disclose and make part of the public record the 

existence of such investigations, site visits, or expert opinions and state the findings 

made therein.  If any written opinion was received by the public official, a copy of said 

written opinion shall be provided to the recording secretary for inclusion in the public 

record.  

 

Sec. 12.09.05. No Penalties for Nondisclosure. 

 

The failure of a public official to disclose the substance of any ex parte communication shall 

not be deemed to constitute a violation of the Ordinance Code, and public officials shall not be subject 

to fines or penalties as a result of such nondisclosure or non-compliance with these procedures.   

 

Sec. 12.09.06. Additional Rules and Procedure Permitted. 

 

Each board, agency, authority, or commission governed by these procedures may adopt 

additional rules and procedures or more stringent rules and procedures relating to ex parte 

communications, so long as such are not in conflict with this Article. 

  

 SECTION 3. CODIFICATION.  It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka; and 

the City Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the Code, and Sections 

of this ordinance may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re-lettered and the word “ordinance" 
173



ORDINANCE NO. 2503 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

may be changed to " chapter ", "section ", "article", or such other appropriate word or phrase in order 

to accomplish such codification. Typographical errors which do not affect the intent may be authorized 

by the Mayor, without need of public hearing, by filing a corrected or re-codified copy of same with 

the City Clerk. 

 

SECTION 4. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION 5. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of this 

ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, administrative 

agency, or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, subsection, sentences, 

clauses, or phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

 

SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, 

requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force 

and effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

 

READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

September 21, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED as to form and legality for 

use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 

Florida. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Cliff B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: July 29, 2016 

       September 9, 2016 
174



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. Ordinance No. 2504 – First Reading – Land Development Code – Building Heights – Legislative   Mark 
Reggentin 

  

175



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Ordinance No. 2504 

X OTHER: Ordinance    
  
SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2504 – AMENDING THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 

CODE. 
    
REQUEST:  ACCEPT FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2504 – TO ALLOW 

INCREASED BUILDING HEIGHTS. 
 

SUMMARY:  
 
As Community Development staff has been reviewing the Land Development Code in anticipation of the 
update scheduled to begin in the next few months, one issue was discovered that could adversely affect 
economic development while the code is in the process of being updated.  This issue is related to building 
height.  Currently building height is limited to 35 feet except within the downtown overlay district.  The 
downtown overlay district permits the following maximum building heights: single family residential uses 
- 35 feet; multi-family uses – 75 feet; and commercial or non-residential uses – 100 feet provided no 
residential uses or a residential zoning district is located within 200 feet.  This distance is measured from 
property line to property line.  Otherwise the maximum building height is 35 feet.   This is a very common 
standard contained in codes from the late 1980’s and early 1990’s.  It was primarily based upon the height 
that a ladder truck could reach.  With the advent of modern building and fire codes, buildings have become 
much safer in relation to fire hazards.   
 
Currently, in order to construct a building in excess of 35 feet, an applicant must rezone the property to 
Planning Unit Development (PUD) and go through a time consuming review and approval process.  
According to Community Development staff, development interests have approached the City to develop 
office buildings over 35 feet but did not move forward due to the process involved with a PUD application 
which may take several months.  This represents lost opportunity.   
 
To address this, staff is proposing an amendment to the Land Development Code to allow an applicant to 
request a special exception to height requirements.  If building height is the only issue, an applicant can 
request a special exception and avoid the costly and time consuming PUD process.  This will allow an 
applicant requesting non-residential development over 35 feet to have that issue addressed in an expeditious 
and straight forward fashion.  The review criteria has been developed to avoid potential adverse effects on 
surrounding properties. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  

176



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
35’ BUILDING HEIGHT 
PAGE 2 

 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
August 9, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm)  
September 7, 2016 - City Council 1st Reading (1:30 pm)  
September 21, 2016 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
July 29, 2016 – Public Hearing Notice 
September 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading  
 
RECOMMEDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the amendment to the City of Apopka, 

Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, Article II, Section 2.02.01 to allow building heights 

in excess of 35 Feet when expressly permitted by Special Exception or Planned Unit Development. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on August 9, 2016, unanimously recommended approval of the 

amendment to the City of Apopka, Code of Ordinances, Part III, Article II, Section 2.02.01 to allow building 

heights in excess of 35 Feet when expressly permitted by Special Exception or Planned Unit Development. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2504 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
September 21, 2016. 
 

Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its 

findings are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting.  

177



ORDINANCE NO. 2504 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING THE APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, PART III, 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, TO ALLOW BUILDING HEIGHTS IN 
EXCESS OF 35 FEET WHEN EXPRESSLY PERMITTED BY SPECIAL 
EXCEPTION OR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT, PROVIDING 
FOR EXCEPTIONS, AND PROVIDING CRITERIA; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka finds it in the best interest of the City of Apopka 
to allow building heights in excess of 35 feet when expressly permitted by special exception.  
 
LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING:  Underlined words constitute additions to the City of Apopka Land 
Development Code, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks (***) indicate an 
omission from the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1.  Article II, Sec. 2.02.01 of the City of Apopka Land Development Code is amended as 
follows:  
 
*** 
 

B. There are several standards which are applied within all zoning districts. They are: 

1. Accessory structures and uses. Accessory structures and uses shall conform to article VII, 
section 7.01.00 of this code.  

2. Additional development requirements:  

a. The city council, may impose additional requirements which in their judgment are required 
as a result of unique circumstances with respect to site, the district in which it is located, 
and the type of development proposed.  

If these additional standards are found necessary as part of a rezoning, zoning districts 
which are subject to such additional conditions, restrictions, or requirements shall include 
additional performance standards in the rezoning ordinance, the performance standards 
shall run with the land. Such conditions shall be in line with the intent and purpose of this 
code.  

b. When a change of occupancy classification as determined by the Standard Building Code, 
or a change of permitted use as determined by the community development director, and/or 
the number of persons in a building significantly increases the entire site shall, as much as 
practicable, comply with the requirements of this code. The specific provisions of the code 
with which the site will be required to comply shall be in accordance with the 
redevelopment standards included in article XII of this code.  

 

3. Building height:  

a. No structure shall exceed 35 feet in height.  Building height in excess of 35 feet is 
unlawful unless expressly permitted by special exception issued pursuant to the 
requirements of Article II, Sec. 2.02.01(B)(3)(c) of this Code or addressed through a 
Planned Unit Development zoning application.  ‘Building height’ is defined in Article I, 
Sec. 1.08.13 of this Code.  

b. Exclusions. Exceptions.  

178



ORDINANCE NO. 2504 

Page 2 of 3 

Page 2 of 3 
 

(1) The building height limitations contained in this code do not apply to, nor is a special 
exception required for: spires, belfries, cupolas, antennas, water tanks, ventilators, 
chimneys, or to other appurtenances usually required to be placed above the roof level 
and not intended for human occupancy provided; however, the heights of these 
structures or appurtenances thereto shall not exceed any height limitations prescribed 
by the FAA or when there is conflict in other sections of this code.  

(2) For non-residential development, a building’s facade may extend up to a maximum of 
five feet above the building’s height (as calculated according to Article I, Sec. 1.08.13 
of this Code) to a maximum of forty feet without the need for a special exception, if 
the facade is utilized to conceal and/or screen roof top equipment, including, but not 
limited to: air conditioning equipment, antennas, etc… 

c.  Special Exception for Building Height.   

(1) The special exception criteria and requirements specified in Article II, Sec. 
2.02.01(B)(5) of this Code are not applicable to building height. 

(2) Special exceptions may only be applied for and granted non-residential development.  

(3) All special exception applications for building height shall include a development plan 
and shall be reviewed by the planning commission for approval to ensure that the 
application meets all requirements of this Code and the following criteria: 

(a) Whether the height exception will have an adverse effect on land uses in 
adjacent areas.  

(b) Whether the height exception will severely reduce light and air in adjacent 
areas.  

(c) Whether the height exception will be a detriment to the improvement or 
development of adjacent property in accord with existing regulations.  

(d) Whether the height exception will adversely affect property values in 
adjacent areas. 

(e) Whether the height exception will adversely influence living conditions in 
adjacent areas. 

(f) Whether the height exception is compatible with adjacent areas, 
neighborhoods, and urban form.  

(g) Whether the height exception will impair scenic views.  

 

*** 

 SECTION 2. CODIFICATION.  It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions of this 
ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka; and the City 
Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the Code, and Sections of this ordinance 
may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re-lettered and the word “ordinance" may be changed to " 
chapter ", "section ", "article", or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such 
codification. Typographical errors which do not affect the intent may be authorized by the Mayor, without 
need of public hearing, by filing a corrected or re-codified copy of same with the City Clerk. 

 
SECTION 3. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 
 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of this 
ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, administrative agency, or 
other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, subsection, sentences, clauses, or phrases 
under application shall not be affected thereby. 

 

179



ORDINANCE NO. 2504 

Page 3 of 3 

Page 3 of 3 
 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, 
requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force and 
effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 
 

READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

September 21, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED as to form and legality for 

use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 

Florida. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Cliff B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: July 29, 2016 

       September 9, 2016 
 

180



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

8. Ordinance No. 2509 – First Reading - Code of Ordinances, “Peddlers and Solicitors” - Legislative Mark Reggentin 
  

181



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBIT(S): Ordinance No. 2509 

X OTHER: Ordinance     
  
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2509 - AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

  

REQUEST:  ACCEPT FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2509 – TO ALLOW 
ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL OF PEDDLERS AND SOLICITORS PERMITS. 

  
SUMMARY:  

 
Currently, the process to review a Peddler or Solicitor Permit application requires a public hearing before the 
City Council to make a determination of approval, approval with conditions, or denial.  Review by City Council 
has produced little or no public benefit for having the extended review process. These processes are costly and 
time consuming for the City as well as permit applicants. Staff is requesting that Chapter 62, Pertaining to 
Peddlers and Solicitors be amended by empowering the City Administrator or his or her designee to administer 
provisions regarding permitting of peddlers or solicitors.  
 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

September 7, 2016 - City Council 1st Reading (1:30 pm)  

September 21, 2016 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

August 19, 2016 – Public Hearing Notice 

September 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

N/A   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the amendment to the City of Apopka, Code of 
Ordinances, amending Chapter 62 – Peddlers and Solicitors empowering the City Administrator or his or her 
designee to administer provisions regarding permitting of peddlers and solicitors. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2509 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 21, 
2016. 
 
Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its findings are to 

be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

182



ORDINANCE NO. 2509 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 62, 

PEDDLERS AND SOLICITORS; EMPOWERING THE CITY 

ADMINISTRATOR OR HIS OR HER DESIGNEE TO 

ADMINISTER PROVISIONS REGARDING PERMITTING 

OF PEDDLERS AND SOLICITORS; AND PROVIDING FOR 

CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka believes that it is necessary and in 

the best interest of the City for the City Administrator or his or her designee to administer 

provisions regarding permitting of peddlers and solicitors.  

 

LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING:  Underlined words constitute additions to the City of 

Apopka Code of Ordinances, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks 

(***) indicate an omission from the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  The provisions of CHAPTER 62, PEDDLERS AND SOLICITORS, 

shall be amended as follows:  

 

Chapter 62 - PEDDLERS AND SOLICITORS 

*** 

Sec. 62-38. - Issuance; temporary permit.  

(a) Issuance generally. The city clerk city administrator or designee is hereby empowered to 

interview and to investigate all persons seeking to engage in house-to-house and business 

canvassing, soliciting, selling, peddling or vending merchandise within the corporate limits of 

the city, and to recommend to the city council the issuance or rejection of issue or reject 

permits and identification cards to persons so applying. The city council shall determine 

whether to issue permits and identification cards, except as otherwise provided in this section.  

(b) Authority to require additional information. The city clerk city administrator or designee, 

may, in order to facilitate his or her investigation, require from any person desiring to secure 

a permit or and identification card for house-to-house and business canvassing the submission 

of credit reports, references, fingerprints and such other information as may facilitate the due 

and proper investigation of the person so applying.  

(c) Temporary permit and card. The city clerk may, if he deems it advisable and in the public 

interest, after preliminary investigation, issue to the applicant a temporary interim permit and 

identification card to engage in house-to-house and business canvassing, soliciting, selling, 

peddling or vending of merchandise of every kind and nature within the corporate limits of 

the city. The temporary interim permit and card shall be subject to confirmation or rejection 

by the city council.  

183



ORDINANCE NO. 2509 

PAGE 2 OF 5 

 

 

(c) (d) Criteria for issuance. The city clerk city administrator or designee shall issue a permit and 

identification card, or recommend the issuance of such a permit and card, whenever the city 

clerk he or she finds the following facts to exist:  

(1) All of the statements made in the application are true. 

(2) The applicant has not engaged in any fraudulent transaction or enterprise. 

(d) (e) Application for occupational license. All persons who may be granted an interim temporary 

or annual permit and identification card under the terms of this section shall, prior to engaging 

in house-to-house or business activities, make application for any required occupational 

license, and such licenses shall be issued upon payment of the fees therefor as prescribed by 

ordinance. If the city council rejects any interim temporary permit or identification card issued 

under this section, the applicant shall receive an equitable rebate of the occupational license 

fee which may have been paid upon the issuance of an interim temporary permit or 

identification card.  

(f) Recommendation to council. The city clerk shall submit, after his final determination, to the 

city council, his recommendations as to the issuance of permits and cards to applicants, which 

list shall include all interim temporary permits issued, and the city council shall consider and 

act upon the recommendations of the city clerk at the next regular meeting following receipt 

of the recommendatory lists, provided the applicant shall have had sufficient notice of the 

recommendations as provided in this section.  

(e) (g) Time limit for action. by clerk. The city clerk city administrator or designee shall in every 

case make his or her recommendations as to the advisability of the issuance or rejection of 

decision to issue or reject permits and cards to the city council within a maximum period of 

four weeks from his or her receipt of the original application by the person seeking to engage 

in house-to-house and business activities within the corporate limits of the city.  

(h) Right to hearing. The city clerk shall, at the time he makes his recommendations, afford the 

applicant an opportunity, if desired, to appear before and be heard by the city council. The 

city clerk shall place upon the agenda of the next regular meeting of the city council all 

recommendations; provided, however, that, if any applicant shall have received notification 

by the city clerk of the rejection of an application for a permit or card to engage in house-to-

house and business activities less than three days before the next regular meeting of the city 

council, such applicant may request, if desired, an opportunity to be heard before the city 

council at the regular meeting following the meeting immediately forthcoming. If the 

applicant so rejected does not make request to the city clerk for a hearing before the city 

council by the Friday noon immediately preceding a regular council meeting, the 

recommendation of the city clerk shall be considered at the next ensuing regular city council 

meeting and the decision of the council will be final and not subject to appeal.  

*** 

Sec. 62-43. - Revocation.  

(a) Identification cards and permits issued under the provisions of this article may be revoked by 

the city clerk city administrator or designee and the chief of police, after notice and hearing, 

for any of the following causes:  

(1) Fraud, misrepresentation or false statement contained in the application for the permit. 

184



ORDINANCE NO. 2509 

PAGE 3 OF 5 

 

 

(2) Fraud, misrepresentation or false statement made in the course of carrying on his business 

as a solicitor or peddler.  

(3) Any violation of this chapter. 

(4) Conviction of any crime or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude. 

(5) Conducting the business of soliciting or peddling in an unlawful manner, or in such 

manner as to constitute a breach of the peace or to constitute a menace to the health, safety 

or general welfare of the public.  

(b) Notice of the hearing for revocation of a permit or identification card shall be given in writing, 

setting forth specifically the grounds of complaint and the time and place of the hearing. Such 

notice shall be mailed, postage prepaid, to the permittee, at his last known address, at least 

five days prior to the date for the hearing.  

Sec. 62-44. - Appeals.  

(a) Any solicitor or peddler aggrieved by the action of the city clerk city administrator or designee 

and/or chief of police in the denial of an application for a permit or in the decision with 

reference to the revocation of the permit as provided in this article shall have the right of 

appeal to the mayor. Such appeal shall be taken by filing with the mayor, within 14 days after 

notice of the action complained of has been mailed to such person's last known address, a 

written statement setting forth fully the grounds for appeal.  

(b) The mayor shall set a time and place for hearing such appeal, and notice of such hearing shall 

be given to the appellant in the same manner as provided in section 62-43(b) for notice of 

hearing on revocation. The decision and order of the mayor on such appeal shall be final and 

conclusive.  

*** 

SECTION 2. CODIFICATION.  It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions 

of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Apopka; and the City Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the 

Code, and Sections of this ordinance may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re-lettered 

and the word “ordinance" may be changed to " chapter ", "section ", "article", or such other 

appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such codification. Typographical errors which 

do not affect the intent may be authorized by the Mayor, without need of public hearing, by filing 

a corrected or re-codified copy of same with the City Clerk. 

 

SECTION 3. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 

are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of 

this ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, 

administrative agency, or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, 

subsection, sentences, clauses, or phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

 

185



ORDINANCE NO. 2509 

PAGE 4 OF 5 

 

 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, 

provisions, requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and 

be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

READ FIRST TIME:  

September 7,  2016 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

September 21, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED as to form and legality for 

use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 

Florida. 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Cliff B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 19, 2016 

       September 9, 2016 

186



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

9. Ordinance No. 2510 – First Reading – Code of Ordinances, “Business Tax Receipts” – Legislative  Mark Reggentin 
  

187



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBIT(S): Ordinance No. 2510 

X OTHER: Ordinance    

 
 
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2510 - AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

  

REQUEST:  ACCEPT FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2510 – TO ALLOW 
ADMINISTRATIVEE APPROVAL OF VEHICLE FOR HIRE PERMITS.  

SUMMARY:  
 
Currently, the process to review a Vehicle for Hire Permit application requires a public hearing before the City Council 
to make a determination of approval, approval with conditions, or denial.  Review by City Council has produced little or 
no public benefit for having the extended review process. These processes are costly and time consuming for the City as 
well as permit applicants. Staff is requesting that Chapter 74, Article IV, Section 74-104 pertaining To “Vehicles for 
Hire” be amended by removing language indicating that City Council approval is required for Vehicle for Hire permits. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 7, 2016 - City Council 1st Reading (1:30 pm)  
September 21, 2016 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 19, 2016 – Public Hearing Notice 
September 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the amendment to the City of Apopka, Code of 
Ordinances, amending Chapter 74, Article IV, Section 74-104, pertaining To “Vehicles for Hire” by removing language 
indicating that City Council approval is required for drivers. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2510 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 21, 
2016. 
 
Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its findings are to 

be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

188



Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2510 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING CHAPTER 74, ARTICLE IV, SECTION 74-104 

OF THE CITY OF APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES 

PERTAINING TO “VEHICLES FOR HIRE” BY REMOVING 

LANGUAGE INDICATING THAT CITY COUNCIL 

APPROVAL IS REQUIRED FOR DRIVERS; AND 

PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka believes that it is necessary and in 

the best interest of the City to remove requirements for City Council approval of drivers for 

“vehicles for hire.” 

 

LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING:  Underlined words constitute additions to the City of 

Apopka Code of Ordinances, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks 

(***) indicate an omission from the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  Section 74-104 of the City of Apopka Code of Ordinances is hereby 

amended as follows:  

 

Sec. 74-104. - Schedule. 

There is hereby assessed, levied and imposed upon every business, trade, occupation and 

profession carried on within the city an annual business tax in the following amounts:  

*** 

Vehicle for hire. (with driver) Must comply with requirements of City Code Chapter 86.  

(City council approval required)  

(1) 1 to 6 passengers, first vehicle .....61.00  

(2) 7+ passengers, first vehicle .....61.00  

(3) Each additional vehicle .....24.00  

*** 

189



Page 2 of 2 
 

SECTION 2. CODIFICATION.  It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions 

of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Apopka; and the City Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the 

Code, and Sections of this ordinance may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re-lettered 

and the word “ordinance" may be changed to " chapter ", "section ", "article", or such other 

appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such codification. Typographical errors which 

do not affect the intent may be authorized by the Mayor, without need of public hearing, by filing 

a corrected or re-codified copy of same with the City Clerk. 

SECTION 3. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 

are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of 

this ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, 

administrative agency, or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, 

subsection, sentences, clauses, or phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, 

provisions, requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and 

be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

September 21, 2016 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED as to form and legality for 

use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 

Florida. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Cliff B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 19, 2016 

       September 9, 2016 

190



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

10. Ordinance No. 2511 – First Reading - Code of Ordinances, “Vehicles for Hire.” – Legislative   Mark Reggentin 
  

191



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 7, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBIT(S): Ordinance No. 2511 

X OTHER:  Ordinance     
  
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2511 - AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES.  
  
REQUEST:  ACCEPT FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2511 – UPDATING THE VEHICLE 

FOR HIRE REQUIREMENS. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 

The current process for review and approval of a Vehicle for Hire Permit (VHP) is to have an applicant submit 

the appropriate application and back up documentation, submit for a criminal background check, schedule to 

have the application reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC) and finally scheduled for review  

by the City Council.  This process has caused difficulties and angst among the applicants which is inevitably 

directed toward administrative staff. This has increased with the popularity of Transportation Network 

Application companies such as Uber and Lyft.  A review of the VHP process revealed that there were greater 

efficiencies that could be achieved if the process were administratively based.  This would allow transportation 

service providers to receive their permits in approximately one week versus the current process which can take 

1-2 months dependent upon the timing of the application submittal as it relates to DRC and City Council 

schedules. 
 
Initially it was determined that a simple ordinance revision would be required to remove the DRC and City 
Council from the process.  However as staff and the City Attorney reviewed the Chapter 86 of the Code of 
Ordinances it became evident that the code was so outdated that a complete revision was necessary.  This is 
primarily based upon the fact that when the code was written, the only option available to hire a vehicle was 
through a taxi company. This has changed drastically based upon the advent of digitally based companies. 
The City Attorney conducted a preliminary review of the current requirements to identify possible amendments 
to address the emerging technologies and practices in the provision of passenger transportation services.  Based 
on this preliminary review, it was determined that the current chapter be repealed and replaced it in its entirety. 
 
Many of the vehicle for hire permitting requirements relate directly to ensuring public safety, including a 
satisfactory criminal background check, and proof of insurance.  Such requirements are important for any type 
of vehicle for hire service, whether it is a traditional taxicab company or a network of independent contractors 
providing transportation services through a transportation network company. 
 
The proposed ordinance is based upon models in Orlando and Tallahassee which have proven successful. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 7, 2016 - City Council 1st Reading (1:30 pm)  
September 21, 2016 – City Council 2nd Reading (7:00 pm) 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 192



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 
CHAPTER 86 – VEHICLE FOR HIRE 
PAGE 2 

 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 19, 2016 – Public Hearing Notice 
September 9, 2016 – Ordinance Heading  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

N/A 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the amendment to the City of Apopka, Code 

of Ordinances, amending the City of Apopka, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86 – Vehicle for Hire - vacating 

and deleting the provisions of chapter 86 of the city code as currently written, adopting new provisions in said 

chapter amending the permitting and regulation of taxicabs and creating regulations for transportation services 

and transportation network application companies and operators. 

 

Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2511 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 

September 21, 2016. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its findings 

are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

193



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 
VACATING AND DELETING THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 86 
OF THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES AS CURRENTLY 
WRITTEN, ADOPTING NEW PROVISIONS IN SAID CHAPTER 
AMENDING THE PERMITTING AND REGULATION OF 
TAXICABS AND CREATING REGULATIONS FOR 
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES AND TRANSPORTATION 
NETWORK APPLICATION COMPANIES AND OPERATORS; 
AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka believes that it is necessary and in the best 

interest of the City to update its regulations for vehicles for hire in recognition of changes and advances 
in modern business models of private automobile transportation. 
 
LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING:  Underlined words constitute additions to the City of Apopka 
Code of Ordinances, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks (***) indicate 
an omission from the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  The provisions of CHAPTER 86, VEHICLES FOR HIRE, shall be vacated and 
deleted in its entirety, and the following shall be adopted in their place. The provisions to be vacated and 
deleted are attached as Exhibit “A.”  
 
Chapter 86 - VEHICLES FOR HIRE 
 
ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL  

Sec. 86-1. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Company means any person, association, corporation or other organization which operates or 
intends to engage in the business of operating vehicles for hire or operate as a TNC.  

Conviction means the conviction by a court including an adjudication of guilt on a plea of guilty or 
nolo contendere or the forfeiture of a bond when charged with a crime.  

Digital platform means any online or smartphone enabled application that allows passengers to 
request transportation network vehicle services.  

Digital credential means the permission or access given to a driver to operate on a company's digital 
platform.  

Driver means an individual permitted to drive a vehicle for hire.  

Fees mean nonrefundable payments required in this chapter.  

Limousine means a specialized vehicle not equipped with a taximeter and for hire only by 
prearrangement at a rate charged per hour, or fixed in advance, and provided also that each such vehicle 
for hire is: (1) chauffeured, (2) a luxury class passenger vehicle built or modified for the purpose of a 
limousine as defined and recognized by the limousine industry; and (3) operated on a reserved, hourly 

194



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 2 of 16 

 
basis for a continuous period. A vehicle which is held out to be a limousine or which has an appearance 
deceptively similar to a limousine is a limousine for the purposes of this chapter.  

Narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and central nervous system stimulants. The term 
"narcotic drugs" as used in this chapter shall mean coca leaves, opium, cannabis, marijuana, isonipecaine 
and every synthetic substance known to have narcotic action. The term "barbituric acid derivative" means 
each of the salts and derivatives of barbituric acid, also known as malonyl urea, and derivatives, 
compounds, mixtures or preparations thereof. "Barbiturate" or "barbiturates" shall include all hypnotic 
or somnifacient drugs, whether or not derivatives of barbituric acids. The term "central nervous system 
stimulants" means amphetamine and desocyephedrine, and any derivative, compounds, mixture or 
preparation thereof.  

Permit means the authority granted to companies to operate, or persons who qualify to drive, 
vehicles for hire.  

Revocation means the rescinding of a permit. A person or entity whose permit is revoked shall not 
be entitled to reinstatement or an opportunity to reapply for such permit for a period of two years except 
as provided in subsection 86-61(5).  

Shuttle bus means a vehicle with a capacity of at least eight persons, including the driver, that is 
operated on a fixed route, or owner and operated directly by a motel or hotel and limited to registered 
guests thereof.  

Suspension means the temporary rescinding of a permit or license. The suspension may be for a time 
certain or indefinite pending compliance with the terms of this chapter.  

Taxicab means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, including the driver, 
equipped with a taximeter operated under a company and vehicle permit required by this article, which 
is routed under the direction of the person hiring the vehicle.  

Taximeter means an instrument or device attached to a vehicle and designed to measure 
mechanically or electronically the distance traveled by such vehicle, to record the times such vehicle 
travels or is in waiting, and to indicate the fare to be obtained.  

Transportation service means a vehicle for hire with a capacity of not more than eight persons, 
including the driver, which is not equipped with a taximeter, which charges passengers a fare generally 
based on a flat fee, and does not operate over a fixed or defined route but routed under the direction of 
the person hiring the vehicle.  

Transportation network application company ("TNC company") means any company operating in 
the city that uses a digital network or software application to connect a passenger to transportation 
network services provided by a transportation network operator.  

Transportation network operator means any driver or operator who operates a personal vehicle that 
utilizes any digital platform to arrange transportation of a passenger between points chosen by the 
passenger and that is in connection with a digital platform controlled by a TNC company.  

Transportation network service means the provision of transportation by a transportation network 
operator to a rider, beginning when the transportation network operator accepts a ride requested through 
a digital platform controlled by a TNC company, continuing while the transportation network operator 
transports a requesting rider, and ending when the last requesting rider departs from the personal vehicle.  

Use of narcotic drugs. The word "use" as employed in this chapter in relation to the drugs described 
in this chapter shall apply to any person who uses one or more of the narcotic drugs or barbituric acid 
derivatives or central nervous system stimulants as defined this section to any extent, with or without 
medical need or authority or prescription.  

Vehicle for hire means any vehicle, whether owned by the driver or company, that is operated by a 
taxicab driver, transportation service driver, transportation network operator, any other motor vehicle 

195



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 3 of 16 

 
with driver transporting passengers for a fare, fee, or other charge in the city. The term vehicle for hire, 
by definition, excludes:  

(1) School, church, college or university buses; 

(2) Sightseeing cars and buses; 

(3) Ambulances; 

(4) Funeral home vehicles; 

(5) Interstate buses; 

(6) Limousines; 

(7) Shuttle buses. 

Vehicle for hire administrator means the City Administrator or his/her designee. 

ARTICLE II. - COMPANY PERMIT  

Sec. 86-31. - Application; contents.  

(a) No taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company shall operate or engage in the 
business of operating vehicles for hire or operating a TNC within the city without having first 
obtained a company permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee. An application shall 
be submitted on forms furnished by the vehicles for hire administrator or designee containing 
appropriate information which is reasonably related to the business of operating vehicles for hire.  

(b) In order to secure or renew a company permit, the company applicant shall file an application with 
the vehicles for hire administrator or designee, and such application shall be verified under oath and 
shall furnish the following information:  

(1) The name and address of the company. If the company is a corporation or partnership, the name 
and address of all officers, shareholders, partners or any principals or owners with an interest 
greater than five percent of the company must be listed.  

(2) The color scheme and insignia to be used to designate the vehicles of any taxicab company.  

(3) No company permit shall be granted to a taxicab company operating less than five vehicles. 
The vehicles must be currently operating, licensed, and inspected as required by this chapter. 
Each vehicle must conform to the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) 
maximum passenger standards allowed for the vehicle to operate.  

(4) Proof of proper amount of insurance coverage as provided in section 86-93, with the insurance 
coverage being filed with vehicle for hire administrator and approved by the City.  

(5) Such other information as the vehicle for hire administrator may require. 

(c) Payment of an annual company permit fee of $250.00. 

Sec. 86-32. - Maintaining a company permit.  

(a) In order to maintain a company permit to operate or engage in the business of operating vehicles for 
hire or operating a TNC, the company must:  

(1) Obtain and hold a current business tax receipt from the city as required by chapter 74, if 
applicable. 

(2) Maintain a telephone number that is monitored 24 hours a day for emergency contact by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee or law enforcement, and an e-mail address for citizen 
complaints or concerns.  

196



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 4 of 16 

 
(3) Maintain the name, home address, and telephone number of each driver affiliated with the 

company.  

(4) Maintain a log listing the year, make, model, license plate number, and vehicle identification 
number (serial number) and ownership status of all vehicles in the company's fleet or that 
operate on a company's platform.  

(5) Maintain proper amount of insurance as provided in section 86-93.  

(6) Maintain records available for inspection, upon request by the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee, pursuant to a complaint received or if the vehicle for hire administrator has a 
reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this chapter. 
The records shall include, but not be limited to, records pertaining to permitted/certified drivers, 
vehicle inspection records, daily logs, and that the maximum rate charged in compliance with 
section 86-95. Unless otherwise agreed to by the company and the vehicle for hire 
administrator, such records shall be made available for inspection to the vehicle for hire 
administrator at a permit holder's place of business or a mutually agreed location in the city.  

(7) Each company shall implement a zero-tolerance policy on the use of drugs or alcohol applicable 
to all drivers, and provide notice of the policy to all company drivers and to the public through 
its website, if applicable. In addition, the company shall provide notice to the public on the 
procedure for reporting a driver the passenger reasonably suspects was under the influence of 
drugs or alcohol during the course of the ride. The company shall cooperate with the vehicle 
for hire administrator or designee during the pendency of the investigation pursuant to 
subsection 86-63(b)(3).  

(8) The vehicle for hire administrator or police chief is authorized to conduct annual audits of any 
company authorized to operate under this chapter. The company shall provide to the vehicle for 
hire administrator, on request, up to 250 unique identification numbers, each of which has been 
assigned to an individual driver affiliated with the company. The vehicle for hire administrator 
may send to the company a list of up to ten driver identification numbers and request copies of 
records held by the company for those ten drivers. Within five business days of receiving a 
request seeking records, the company shall make available to the vehicle for hire administrator 
at a company's place of business or a mutually agreed setting in the city, records to verify that 
the company has properly screened drivers in accordance with section 86-61; provided, that the 
company may redact any records it provides access to in order to protect the privacy and 
identifying information of the driver.  

Sec. 86-33. - Revocation or suspension of a company permit; grounds; right of appeal.  

(a) Revocation or suspension of company permit; grounds. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined in 
subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the authority 
to revoke or suspend any company permit which has been granted or which may hereinafter be 
granted by the city. Prior to suspension or revocation, the company shall be served notice by certified 
mail or hand delivery of the proposed action to be taken and shall have an opportunity to present to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee evidence as to why the company permit should not be 
revoked or suspended.  

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a company permit 
shall include but shall not be limited to the following:  

(1) The failure of the company to maintain any of the general qualifications applicable to the initial 
granting of the company permit as set forth in section 86-31 or maintaining a company permit 
as set forth in section 86-32.  

(2) Obtaining a company permit by providing false information. 

197



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 5 of 16 

 
(3) Conviction by a court of competent jurisdiction of any shareholder, officer, partner, member, 

principal or owner of any corporation, partnership, firm or association holding a five percent 
interest or more in the entity, of any of the following: criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, 
aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, child molestation, lewd 
and lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to 
commit any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system 
stimulants if such violation or violations are related to operation of the company, or violation 
of any ordinance of the city governing the conduct of a company.  

(4) Allowing any person to operate a company's designated vehicle for hire, or operate on the 
company's digital platform, without an active driver permit or credential, or when said person's 
permit or credential has been suspended or revoked because of a positive drug test pursuant to 
section 86-63.  

(c) Right of appeal. Any company whose permit is revoked or suspended by the vehicle for hire 
administrator or designee may appeal such decision to the City Council. Such appeal shall be taken 
by filing written notice thereof, in duplicate, with the city administrator's office within five days 
after the decision of the vehicles for hire administrator or designee. The notice of the appeal shall 
contain the grounds for the appeal and shall contain information that either the finding is contrary 
to the law or is not supported by competent substantial evidence. The vehicle for hire administrator 
or designee shall forthwith transmit copies of the appeal to the City Council along with all papers 
constituting the record upon which the action appealed from is based. The filing of a notice of appeal 
will not delay the effectiveness of any suspension or revocation.  

ARTICLE III. - VEHICLE FOR HIRE DRIVERS  

Sec. 86-60. - Prohibition against unauthorized operation.  

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate on behalf of a taxicab company, transportation 
service, or other vehicle for hire for the transportation of passengers within the city, or on a TNC's 
digital platform, or to cause or permit any other person to drive or operate a vehicle for hire:  

(1) Without first obtaining a written permit for the operation of a motor vehicle for hire from the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee;  

(2) Without having been certified to operate a motor vehicle for hire on behalf of a company or on 
the company's digital platform; or  

(3) When the company permit has previously been revoked pursuant to section 86-33.  

(b) Any person found to have violated this section shall be punished by the following: 

(1) A fine $150.00 for the first citation; 

(2) A fine of $250.00 for the second citation; and 

(3) A fine of $500.00 for the third or subsequent citation. 

Sec. 86-61. - Application for driver's permit.  

(a) In order to secure a driver permit or to obtain certification from a company, an applicant must:  

(1) Be at least 18 years of age; 

(2) Possess a valid state driver's license; 

(3) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have been convicted of:  

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs; or 

198



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 6 of 16 

 
b. Violation of any ordinance or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 

operation of a motor vehicle.  

(4) For a period of three years prior to the date of application not have more than three moving 
violations;  

(5) Not have been convicted within the seven years previous to the date of application for the 
violation of any of the following criminal offenses of the state or any other state or of the United 
States: aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, kidnapping, robbery, lewd and 
lascivious acts, armed trespassing, carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit 
any of the above, criminal attempt to commit any of the offenses listed in this subsection, or 
been convicted within the last seven years of any felony in the commission of which a motor 
vehicle was used, perjury or false swearing in making any statement under oath in connection 
with application for a driver's permit, any felony involving theft, or possession, sale or 
distribution of narcotic drugs, barbituric acid derivative and/or central nervous system 
stimulants. Applicants who have been convicted or served any time, probation, or parole for a 
criminal offense of homicide, rape, sexual battery, or child molestation must have their 
complete criminal history reviewed and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator;  

(6) Be able to communicate in the English language. 

 (b) An applicant may apply for a permit or credential by completing a form provided by the vehicle for 
hire administrator establishing that the applicant meets the requirements of subsection. 

 (c) Upon approval by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or certification by the taxicab 
company, transportation service, or TNC company, the driver shall be issued:  

(1) A permit from the vehicle for hire administrator or designee; or 

(2) Credentials from the taxicab company, transportation service, or TNC company, which may be 
digital credentials, indicating that the driver was certified by the company, and the credential 
shall include the following information:  

a. The name or logo of the company; 

b. The name of the driver; 

c. The license plate number associated with the vehicle that the driver has been authorized to 
use.  

(3) The driver shall display the permit or credential in a manner that it is visible to the passengers 
of the vehicle while the vehicle is operating, or make available at a minimum the driver's first 
name, photograph, and make, model, and license plate number to the passenger through the 
company's digital platform. The driver shall present the permit or credential upon request to a 
law enforcement officer, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee, or designated airport 
personnel upon request. If the driver maintains a digital credential, upon a traffic stop, a driver 
shall provide law enforcement with access to a device containing the information required to 
be maintained as part of the driver's digital credential and an electronic record sufficient to 
establish that the trip in question was prearranged through a digital platform.  

(d) An applicant must pay an annual driver application fee of $100.00.  

Sec. 86-62. - Maintaining driver's permit.  

In order to maintain a valid permit or credential to drive a taxicab, transportation service, or other 
vehicle for hire, a driver must:  

(1) Wear proper dress while operating a vehicle for hire. 

(2) Maintain a neat appearance. 

199



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 7 of 16 

 
(3) Not smoke while carrying passengers. 

(4) Maintain a log upon which are recorded all trips made each day, showing time and place of 
origin and destination of each trip and amount of fare. Such logs must be maintained by the 
company or the vehicle owner, if not maintained by the driver, and shall be made available to 
the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for a compliance inquiry if the administrator has 
a reasonable basis to suspect that a company or driver is violating the requirements of this 
chapter.  

(5) Renew his driver's permit or credential during the month of the driver's permit or credential 
expiration date.  

(6) Wear a seatbelt at all times while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation 
network services.  

Sec. 86-63. - Revocation or suspension of driver's permits; grounds; right of appeal.  

(a) Revocation or suspension of driver's permits or credential. Upon a finding of due cause, as defined 
in subsection (b) of this section, the vehicle for hire administrator or designee shall have the 
authority to revoke or suspend any driver's permit or credential which has been issued or which may 
hereinafter be issued by the city. Before a driver's permit or credential shall be denied, suspended 
or revoked, notice of intention thereof shall be served upon the driver either by registered mail or 
personal service; however, such notice shall not be necessary for a denial of an original permit or 
credential. However, any such applicant or driver shall be given an opportunity to be heard by the 
vehicle for hire administrator or designee.  

(b) Causes for revocation or suspension. Due cause for revocation or suspension of a driver's permit or 
credential shall include but shall not be limited to the following:  

(1) The failure of the driver to maintain any and all of the general qualifications as applicable to 
the initial issuance of a permit as set forth in section 86-61;  

(2) Obtaining a permit or credential by providing false information; 

(3) Violation by a driver of any of the following offenses: 

a. Driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs. A driver shall be required 
to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test at the request of the vehicle for hire administrator or 
designee:  

1. Where reasonable suspicion exists that a driver is abusing alcohol or misusing 
prescription drugs or controlled substances; or  

2. Where a driver has been involved in a crash with serious injury or serious property 
damage while operating a vehicle for hire or providing transportation network 
services. "Serious injury" is defined as a physical condition that creates a substantial 
risk of death, serious personal disfigurement, or protracted loss or impairment of the 
function of any bodily member or organ. "Serious property damage" is defined as one 
or more of the motor vehicles involved in the crash is "totaled", or one or more of the 
vehicles sustains significant disabling damage to public and/or private property which 
equals or exceeds an apparent damage of $5,000.00 or more as estimated by the law 
enforcement officer who conducts the investigation at the scene of the traffic crash; or  

b. Refusing or failing to submit to a drug test at the request of the vehicle for hire 
administrator or designee shall be due cause for revocation of the driver's permit or 
credential with no reapplication for one year. Failing a drug or alcohol test shall be due 
cause for revocation of the driver's permit or credential with no reapplication for one year.  

c. Criminal homicide, rape, sexual battery, aggravated battery, burglary, aggravated assault, 
kidnapping, robbery, child molestation, lewd and lascivious acts, armed trespassing, 

200



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 8 of 16 

 
carrying a concealed firearm, criminal solicitation to commit any of the above, criminal 
attempt to commit any of the above, or possession, sale or distribution of narcotic drugs, 
barbituric acid derivatives and/or central nervous system stimulants, violation of any 
ordinance of the city governing the conduct of drivers of a vehicle for hire.  

(4) Charging a fare contrary to any fares established and approved by the city commission pursuant 
to section 86-95;  

(5) Violation of any ordinances or law, other than minor traffic offenses, in connection with the 
operation of a taxicab, transportation service, TNC company, or other vehicle for hire;  

(6) Whenever it shall appear that a driver has disorders characterized by lapses of consciousness or 
other mental or physical disabilities affecting his or her ability to drive safely;  

(7) Accumulating nine or more points within a six-month period as outlined in F.S. § 322.27(3)d. 

(8) Violating the requirements of section 86-96.  

Sec. 86-64. - Duration of driver permit.  

Each driver permit or credential issued pursuant to section 86-61 above shall be valid for one year 
from the date of issuance.  

ARTICLE IV. - VEHICLES FOR HIRE  

Sec. 86-91. - Identifying signs, monograms and insignias.  

(a) Taxicabs.  

Each taxicab shall be readily identifiable as a taxicab and shall bear on the outside of each rear or 
front door, in letters not less than two inches in height, the name of the person or corporation to 
whom the franchise is issued. Each such taxicab shall also be numbered consecutively, with such 
numbers being placed conspicuously on each vehicle, with such numerals being not less than four 
and one-half inches nor more than six inches in height.  

 (b) Transportation services.  

(1) Each vehicle operated by a transportation service shall be readily identifiable as a transportation 
service and shall bear on the outside of each rear or front door, in letters not less than two inches 
in height, the name of the person or corporation to whom the vehicle is owned or operated by.  

(2) No transportation service shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself as a "taxi" or "cab" 
or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab.  

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company/transportation network operator.  

(1) Each vehicle operated by a TNC company or transportation network operator shall bear on the 
outside of each rear or front door, in letters not less than two inches in height, the name of the 
person or corporation to whom the vehicle is owned or operated by, or any symbol or insignia 
approved by the vehicle for hire administrator.  

(2) No transportation network operator vehicle shall have any insignia or sign that identifies itself 
as a "taxi" or "cab" or otherwise gives the impression that it is a taxicab, or otherwise give the 
impression that the operator is available to solicit passengers other than through the digital 
platform.  

(3) No transportation network operator vehicle shall place any type or form of light device or other 
device on the roof, commonly known as a top light or top hat, whether or not permanently or 
temporarily affixed to the vehicle, or have within the interior of the vehicle.  

 

201



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 9 of 16 

 
Sec. 86-92. - Taximeter.  

(a) All taxicabs operated under the authority of this chapter shall be equipped with taximeters fastened 
in a manner so that the face thereof shall be visible and readable to passengers at all times both day 
and night. The face of the taximeter shall be set so that it will register and compute on a mileage 
basis while such taxicab is moving and on a time basis while such taxicab is standing and while the 
service is being rendered the fare to be charged. Such taximeter shall be operated mechanically by 
a mechanism of standard design and construction, driven either from the transmission or from one 
of the front wheels by a flexible and permanently attached driving mechanism.  

(b) No vehicle for hire other than a taxicab is authorized to install or be equipped with a taximeter.  

Sec. 86-93. - Liability insurance required.  

No vehicle for hire shall be placed in service unless such vehicle is in compliance with Florida law 
for liability insurance purposes. Proof of such insurance coverage, which may be provided on a blanket 
basis, shall be filed annually with and approved by the vehicle for hire administrator or designee for the 
carriage of passengers.  

Sec. 86-94. - Seat belts required.  

All vehicles for hire covered by this chapter shall be equipped with operational seat belts for each 
passenger.  

Sec. 86-95. - Authority of city commission to establish rates and charges; displaying rate cards.  

(a) Taxicabs. 

(1) The city commission may by ordinance establish maximum rates and charges for the 
transportation of persons and their baggage within the corporate limits of the city and suburban 
territory adjacent thereto. Any ordinance establishing rates as provided by this section shall 
become effective 24 hours after its adoption.  

(2) Every taxicab operating under this chapter shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a 
schedule of rates for the transportation of person within the corporate limits of the city, and no 
charges shall be made in excess of the rates so posted.  

(3) There is hereby established a schedule of the maximum rates which can be charged by all 
taxicab drivers operating taxicabs within the city. A taximeter may be set so that it will register 
and compute on a mileage or other basis at less than the maximum rates set forth in this section.  

(b) Transportation service. 

(1)  All fares as agreed to between any transportation service operator and any passenger must be 
agreed upon prior to leaving the point of origin. No transportation service operator may increase 
the agreed upon fare after leaving the point of origin.  

(2) No transportation service shall be authorized to charge for wait time, or to charge any other 
rates or fees except for mileage.  

(3) Every transportation service vehicle shall have cards displayed visibly from the outside of the 
vehicle on the passenger side and on the inside of the right rear window at the eye level of a 
seated passenger that state the following: "RATE OF TRANSPORT IS BY FLAT FEE ONLY".  

(c) Transportation network application (TNC) company or transportation network operator. 

(1) All TNC companies shall disclose the fare calculation method, the applicable rates being 
charged, and the option for an estimated fare to a passenger before the passenger arranges or 
books a trip with the transportation network application company or transportation network 
operator.  

202



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 10 of 16 

 
(2) Upon completion of the trip, a TNC company shall transmit an electronic receipt to the 

passenger's e-mail or mobile application that lists the: origin and destination of the trip; the total 
time and distance of the trip; and a breakdown of the total fare paid, if any.  

Sec. 86-96. - Miscellaneous regulations and other penalties.  

(a) It shall be unlawful for any driver or operator of a vehicle for hire to drive or operate or be on duty 
or on call for the operation of a vehicle for hire for more than 12 hours within any 24-hour period.  

 (b) A driver shall take the most direct route to a passenger's destination unless otherwise authorized or 
directed by the passenger.  

(c) No driver shall refuse to accept a passenger unless the passenger is obviously disorderly, dangerous, 
or otherwise a threat to the safety or welfare of the driver.  

(d) It shall be unlawful for the driver operating in the city to permit any person to accompany or use 
such vehicle for hire for the purpose of prostitution, or to direct, take or transport any other person 
with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the purpose of such directing, taking or 
transporting is for the purpose of prostitution.  

(e) No vehicle for hire shall be permitted to carry nonpaying passengers while transporting a paying 
passenger or passengers except for the purpose of driver training.  

(f) No vehicle for hire shall solicit or carry a paying passenger while in the process of carrying another 
paying passenger except when requested to do so by the latter passenger.  

(g) Transportation network operators shall exclusively accept passengers booked through a 
transportation network company's digital platform, and shall not solicit or accept street-hails.  

(h) No TNC company may provide personal information about a passenger to a transportation network 
operator, including a passenger's full name, e-mail address, or telephone number.  

Sec. 86-97. - Enforcement.  

The city police department and the vehicles for hire administrator shall be authorized to enforce the 
regulations contained in this chapter, including the promulgation of rules consistent with this chapter 
and the setting of fees.  

SECTION 2. CODIFICATION.  It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka; and 

the City Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the Code, and Sections 

of this ordinance may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re-lettered and the word “ordinance" 

may be changed to " chapter ", "section ", "article", or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to 

accomplish such codification. Typographical errors which do not affect the intent may be authorized by 

the Mayor, without need of public hearing, by filing a corrected or re-codified copy of same with the 

City Clerk. 

SECTION 3. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of this 

ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, administrative agency, 

or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, subsection, sentences, clauses, or 

phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

203



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 11 of 16 

 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, 

requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force 

and effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

READ FIRST TIME: September 7, 2016 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

September 21, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Linda G. Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED as to form and legality for 

use and reliance by the City of Apopka, 

Florida. 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 19, 2016 

       September 9, 2016 

  

204



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 12 of 16 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Sec. 86-39. - Liability insurance.  

(a) It shall be unlawful for the owner, operator, driver or chauffeur of any taxicab to drive or operate 

the taxicab or to permit the taxicab to be driven or operated upon the public streets, unless such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur shall have first procured and filed with the city clerk a liability 

insurance policy issued by a good and responsible surety company, which insurance company or 

surety company must have authority to do business as such in the state and must be acceptable to 

and approved by the city council. The amount of liability insurance or surety bond for each taxicab 

shall be the minimum required by the state for liability insurance, or, if liability insurance is not 

required by state law, the minimum financial responsibility requirements of the Financial 

Responsibility Law, F.S. ch. 324.  

(b) Such policy of insurance or surety bond may be in the form of a separate policy or separate surety 

bond for each taxicab, or may be in the form of a fleet policy covering all taxicabs operated by such 

owner, operator, driver or chauffeur, in which latter event such policy of insurance or surety bond 

shall provide the same liability for each taxicab operated in service as specified in subsection (a) of 

this section. Every taxicab hired in service shall have conspicuously displayed therein or thereon 

some sign evidencing the fact that the provisions of this section have been complied with, with the 

form thereof to be prescribed by the chief of police.  

(c) No policy of insurance or surety bond as provided for in this section shall be cancelled until the 

expiration of five days after notice of intended cancellation thereof has been given in writing to the 

city clerk by registered mail or personal delivery of such notice, and a provision therefor shall be 

embodied in the policy or surety bond.  

Sec. 86-40. - Use of streets for transacting business.  

Except as provided in this article, no taxicab shall occupy space on the streets for the transaction of 

business other than the picking up of passengers. All places of business of taxicabs shall be maintained 

off the streets.  

Sec. 86-41. - Use of improper vehicles.  

It shall be unlawful for any person to operate or drive, as a taxicab, in or upon any street, any motor-

driven vehicle, unless the vehicle is a taxicab as defined in this article.  

Sec. 86-42. - Name of owner or operator to be displayed on vehicle.  

It shall be unlawful for any taxicab to be driven upon the streets unless the name of the person either 

owning or operating such taxicab, or the trade name under which such taxicab is operated, is 

conspicuously painted on such taxicab in letters not less than two inches in height.  

Sec. 86-43. - Meters.  

(a) All taxicabs shall be equipped with mechanical devices, commonly called taxicab meters, for 

registering the fare to be charged.  

205



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 13 of 16 

 

(b) Every meter in use shall be placed in such taxicabs at a location that will be plainly visible at all 

times to the occupants of such taxicabs. Between the hours of sunset and sunrise, the dial of the 

meter shall be illuminated whenever it is in use.  

(c) Whenever a taxicab is not in service, the meter shall show no fare and the flag shall be in the upright 

position. When a taxicab is in service, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be lowered and the 

meter shall be in the calculating position.  

(d) Upon the completion of service by a taxicab, the flag or indicator on the meter shall be raised and 

the meter shall be returned to the noncalculating position and its dials cleared.  

(e) It shall be unlawful for the operator or driver of any taxicab to operate the taxicab on the streets of 

the city with any occupant in such taxicab other than the driver when the flag or indicator on the 

taxicab meter is upright and in the noncalculating position, except when operating on an hourly or 

trip rate.  

(f) When the hourly rate or the special trip rate is used, an appropriate sign indicating that the cab is on 

a trip or hourly rate shall be exhibited.  

(g) It shall be the duty of the person owning and operating taxicabs to have the meter in good working 

condition and operating accurately as to the registration of mileage and fare. Such meters shall be 

sealed in a manner that will prevent any person from tampering with or changing the adjustment of 

the meter. It shall be unlawful for any person to tamper with or change the adjustment of a meter, 

except the owner operating the taxicab to which such meter is affixed, or a person duly designated 

by the owner, or a meter mechanic.  

(h) It shall be unlawful for any person owning and operating taxicabs with meters affixed thereto to 

permit the taxicabs to be operated on the streets of the city when such meters do not accurately 

register the mileage and the rate as set forth by the ordinances of the city. All meters shall be subject 

to inspection and test by any police officer at all times when cabs are not carrying passengers.  

Sec. 86-44. - Rates and charges.  

(a) Posting. Each taxicab shall have posted in a conspicuous place therein a schedule of rates for the 

transportation of persons within the corporate limits of the city, and no charges shall be made in 

excess of the rates so posted.  

(b) Determination. All rate charges or fees for the use of taxicabs using meters shall be determined by 

a meter rate, hourly rate or special trip rate and by no other method. All charges are for the exclusive 

use of the taxicab, and shall apply regardless of the number of passengers transported.  

Sec. 86-45. - Fare receipts; right to demand payment of fare in advance.  

If demanded by the passenger, the driver in charge of a taxicab shall deliver to the person paying 

for the hiring of the taxicab, at the time of such payment, a receipt therefor in legible writing, containing 

the name of the owner and the city license or permit number, showing upon such receipt all items for 

which a charge is made, the total amount paid and the date of payment. Every driver of any such taxicab 

shall have the right to demand payment of the legal fare in advance, and may refuse employment unless 

so prepaid.  

Sec. 86-46. - Soliciting passengers near intersection.  

206



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 14 of 16 

 

It shall be unlawful for any person owning or operating one or more vehicles for hire in the city to 

operate such motor vehicles over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting patronage, 

picking up passengers or delivering passengers at any point within 100 feet of any intersecting street 

corner along such street. It is the purpose and intent of this section to prohibit such practice within 100 

feet in all directions from such intersections. Such distance in all cases shall be measured from the center 

of the intersection. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any taxicab 

or vehicle operated for hire from responding to any specific request for passage from any person seeking 

the services offered by such taxi or motor vehicle or from stopping at any point within the city for the 

purpose of delivering a passenger who has been picked up at any part of the city in a manner not 

prohibited by law. This section shall not apply to any buses or motor vehicles owned or operated by any 

bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city.  

Sec. 86-47. - Soliciting passengers by preceding or following scheduled bus.  

It shall be unlawful for any person operating motor vehicles for hire in the city to operate such motor 

vehicle over and upon the streets of the city for the purpose of soliciting the patronage of passengers by 

immediately preceding or following any duly scheduled bus or motor vehicle operated for such purpose 

by any bus or transit company under an exclusive franchise from the city along the streets of the city. 

Nothing contained in this section shall be construed as prohibiting the driver of any duly licensed taxi 

from responding to any specific request for passage from any patron seeking the services offered by such 

duly licensed taxi.  

Sec. 86-48. - Smoking by driver.  

It shall be unlawful for any driver, operator or chauffeur of any taxicab to smoke while the taxicab 

is occupied by a passenger.  

Sec. 86-49. - Use for immoral purposes.  

It shall be unlawful for the driver of a taxicab to permit any person to accompany or use such taxicab 

for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or assignation, or to direct, take or transport, or to offer or agree 

to direct, take or transport, any other person, with knowledge or reasonable cause to believe that the 

purpose of such directing, taking or transporting is for the purpose of prostitution, lewdness or 

assignation.  

Sec. 86-50. - Display of political advertisements.  

It shall be unlawful for any person licensed by the city to operate or drive a taxicab upon any street 

within the city with a political ad displayed for anyone seeking public office at any time.  

DIVISION 2. - BUSINESS PERMIT  

Sec. 86-66. - Required.  

It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated any taxicab business unless a permit for the 

operation thereof shall have been first issued by the city council in the manner provided in this division.  

Sec. 86-67. - Application and investigation.  

(a) An application for the permit required by this division shall be made in writing to the city council. 

Such application shall set forth the name, residence address, and address of place of business of the 

applicant and the kind, make and model of the vehicle to be used in the business. If the applicant is 

207



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 15 of 16 

 

a copartnership, the application shall give the nmes and residence addresses of the copartners. If the 

application is a corporation, the application shall set forth the name of the corporation and the 

residence address of its officers and board of directors. The application shall set forth the trade name, 

if any, under which the applicant does or proposes to do business.  

(b) Upon the filing of an application, the city clerk shall make an investigation, including any hearing 

deemed necessary, as to each application for a permit for the operation of taxicabs. In determining 

whether a permit shall be issued, the city council shall investigate the fitness of the applicant to 

engage in the business of operating taxicabs and the fitness of the equipment to be used, and shall 

also consider and determine whether the demands of public convenience, necessity and safety justify 

the issuance of such permit.  

Sec. 86-68. - Issuance or denial.  

If the city council finds favorably to the applicant and decides to grant a permit for the operation of 

taxicabs, a permit as provided in this division shall be issued to the applicant. If the city council finds 

against the applicant and decides that the public convenience, necessity and safety do not justify the 

issuance of such permit or that the applicant is not fit to conduct the taxicab business or the equipment 

is not fit for such business, then no permit shall be issued, and notice of the action of the city council 

shall be given to the applicant, setting forth the reason for the refusal of such permit.  

Sec. 86-69. - Occupational license required.  

Prior to the issuance of a permit for the operation of taxicabs, the applicant shall obtain an 

occupational license.  

Sec. 86-70. - Transfer.  

A permit for the operation of taxicabs shall not be transferable, except upon application to and 

consent of the city council.  

Sec. 86-71. - Suspension or revocation.  

Whenever any person engaged in the taxicab business is found to be in violation of the provisions 

of this article or the traffic ordinances of the city or of any of the laws of the state, the city council may, 

upon complaint or upon its own motion, issue an order to such person to appear at a fixed time and place 

for investigation. If the city council is satisfied, after such hearing, that such person is guilty of the 

violations charged, it may, in its discretion, suspend for a fixed period or revoke entirely the permit 

issued to such person.  

DIVISION 3. - DRIVER'S PERMIT  

Sec. 86-91. - Required.  

No person shall operate or drive a taxicab upon any street unless he has obtained a permit pursuant 

to the provisions of this division.  

Sec. 86-92. - Application and investigation.  

Any person having resided continuously in the state for not less than six months immediately 

preceding the making of application for a permit to operate a taxicab and being 18 years of age or over 

may make application to the city clerk for a permit to operate a taxicab. A verbal or written examination, 

208



ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

PAGE 16 of 16 

 

or both, may be given by the chief of police to each applicant to determine knowledge of city streets, 

locations and environs.  

Sec. 86-93. - Issuance; contents.  

It shall be the duty of the chief of police, if the applicant for a permit under this division is 

knowledgeable of the provisions of this article and of the traffic ordinance of the city, and the applicant 

pays the required fee and otherwise complies with this division for the initial year, to issue such person 

a written permit, which permit shall be signed by the city clerk and sealed with the corporate seal of the 

city, and shall bear the name, address, sex, age, signature, photograph and fingerprints of the applicant. 

The chief of police shall procure the fingerprints and a photograph of the applicant and shall keep the 

fingerprints and photograph on permanent file in his office. The fingerprints and photograph shall be 

voluntarily furnished by the applicant at the time of filing his application.  

Sec. 86-94. - State commercial license required.  

No person shall be issued a taxicab driver's permit unless he holds a commercial license issued by 

the state.  

Sec. 86-95. - Alteration or destruction prohibited.  

It shall be unlawful for any person holding a taxicab driver's permit to wilfully alter, deface, 

obliterate or destroy the permit, or to cause the permit to be defaced, obliterated or destroyed.  

Sec. 86-96. - Display.  

Every driver or operator of any taxicab operated shall have his driver's permit displayed in such 

taxicab in a conspicuous place so as to be easily observed by any person occupying such taxicab.  

Sec. 86-97. - Suspension or revocation.  

Whenever any operator or driver of a taxicab is found to be violating the provisions of this article, 

or the traffic ordinances of the city, or any of the laws of the state, the city council may, upon complaint 

or upon its own motion, issue an order to such operator or driver to appear at a fixed time and place for 

investigation. If the city council shall be satisfied after such hearing of the violation as charged, it may, 

in its discretion, suspend for a fixed period, or revoke entirely, the driver's permit issued.  

Sec. 86-98. - Appeals.  

Any person whose taxicab driver's permit is refused, suspended or revoked by the chief of police 

may appeal, by filing notice thereof with the city clerk within 30 days from the time of such refusal, 

revocation or suspension. Such appeal as filed shall not act as a supersedeas until such time as the city 

council shall take final action on such appeal.  

 

 

209



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Youth Council Proposal     Commissioner Becker 
  

210



 
City of Apopka | Youth Council Proposal Brief 

As presented by Commissioner Kyle Becker 

 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners: 

 

Fellow members of Council, please find attached my proposal for the creation of a Youth Council for the 

City of Apopka.  It is my desire to establish a Youth Council to help foster the development of our next generation 

of community leaders through active civic engagement and service learning. 

 

As you are aware, many times during and before our individual tenures, fellow residents have come before 

Council to voice support and a desire to invest in our youth and youth programs.  This appeal has come from all 

corners of Apopka, and space between.  Some highlight athletics, others education, some after-school programs, 

but they all share a theme of ensuring our young residents can follow a path to being productive citizens within our 

community. 

 

Having had a previous interest in this endeavor, I made sure to visit the Youth Council portion of the 

recent Florida League of Cities Conference, and had the opportunity to meet and discuss ideas with staff members 

from the League of Cities, and other municipalities with youth programs in place.  The proposal I submit below is a 

combination of those conversations, as well as the framework established by the Florida League of Cities in 2008, 

courtesy of the A Guide for Creating a City Youth Council document also attached to this proposal.  It is simply 

that, a guide or framework, allowing us as leaders to form a Youth Council befitting our great city of Apopka and 

talented youth population. 

 

The proposal I am putting forth is a mere idea, but I hope the will of this Council will be to turn this idea 

into a reality, and another avenue in which our City can serve our young people.  My ask is that you review this 

proposal package, as well as the attached guide, and bring questions/ideas to a Council meeting agreeable to 

provide time for review.  If there is interest, I would ask that each member of Council identify a resource to serve 

on an exploratory/organizational committee to organize the Youth Council for formal adoption. 

 

I thank you in advance for your consideration, and further conversation on this topic. 

 

Kind Regards, 

 

Commissioner Kyle Becker, Seat Four 

City of Apopka 

 

  

211



 
City of Apopka | Youth Council Proposal Brief 

As presented by Commissioner Kyle Becker 

 
Proposed Purpose 

To engage a diverse population of youth in Apopka’s civic process; to promote tomorrow’s leaders through service 

learning and community involvement 

Proposed Objectives 

1. 360 degree view of government function through direct access to city leaders and staff 

2. Community Service 

3. Educational speaker series with topics to include: budget/finance, public speaking, personal development 

4. Think Tank & Idea Lab 

Proposed Structure 

 Size 25 (partial first year) 

 Eligible schools Apopka High School, Wekiva High School, Sheeler High School, Home School (within Apopka 

city limits) 

 Eligible students Grades 9, 10, & 11 

 Selection process Students are nominated (or can self-nominate), an application form would then be submitted 

for review.  Committee (TBD) would review applications and determine acceptance into the 

program (criteria TBD). 

 Term Accepted members would serve for a maximum of 1 year (school year) 

 Requirements Members would be required to complete a certain amount of community service hours, and 

attend a certain number of events to remain in/graduate from program. 

Proposed Program 

Monthly 

 City Department Spotlight – Staff to provide interactive overview of their department function 

 Think Tank & Idea Lab – Discuss/debate current issues and come up with ideas to address future needs 

Bi-Monthly 

 Community Service Project 

 Speaker Series – Business or community leader present on breadth of personal development topics 

Quarterly 

 Meeting with the Mayor – Open forum discussion about current events 

 City Council Update – Agenda item to present formal youth update to the City Council 

Annual  

 Apopka Service Day – Youth would organize a large scale, city-wide community service day 

 Annual State of the Youth Address – Recap of the year’s successes and further growth opportunities 

 Graduation & Awards at City Council Meeting 

Throughout Year 

 Recurring production of Youth Council programming for broadcast, e.g. Facebook, OrangeTV 

212



A Guide for        
Creating a CityCreating a City  
Youth CouncilYouth Council

Compiled by the Florida League of Cities, Inc.

213



2

n August 2008, Wellington Vice Mayor Carmine Priore was sworn 
in as president of the Florida League of Cities. In his first speech as 
president, he spoke about how students are receiving little or no 
civic education instruction in the classroom and cited surveys and 

studies showing that a large percentage of high school students know 
little about their governments. He made it his presidential priority to 
promote civic education and encouraged cities to create youth councils 
to educate this younger generation. 

While many of Florida’s cities already have youth councils, we wanted to 
create a document that would serve as a “road map” for others wanting 
to start similar programs. These special citywide councils are composed 
of students from different high schools within the city and serve as an 
advisory board to the city commission/council. These students are the 
leaders of tomorrow and it is important to expose them to municipal 
government at an early age. We hope that your city will consider 
forming a youth council.

The Florida League of Cities would like to thank the North Carolina 
Civic Education Consortium for providing a template for this document. 
Additionally, the League would like to thank the following Florida 
governments for providing information on their youth councils: Dade 
City, West Palm Beach and Destin; and also Greene County, N.C.

For more information, contact Casey Cook at ccook@flcities.com or by 
phone at (850) 701-3609.

II

COVER PHOTO © ISTOCKPHOTO.COM CHRIS SCHMIDTDecember 2008 214



3

Table of Contents
What is a youth council?What is a youth council? ...................................... ......................................4

Why create a youth council?Why create a youth council? ................................ ................................4

Who benefits?Who benefits? ...................................................... ......................................................4

Is your city ready for a youth council?Is your city ready for a youth council? ................. .................5

Who creates and oversees the youth council?Who creates and oversees the youth council? ..... .....5

Who serves on the youth council?Who serves on the youth council? ....................... .......................5

How do you establish a youth council?How do you establish a youth council? ................ ................6

Now what?Now what? ........................................................... ...........................................................7

What should the youth council do?What should the youth council do? ...................... ......................9

Appendices

An ordinance from the City of Dade CityAn ordinance from the City of Dade City
creating the city’s Youth Councilcreating the city’s Youth Council ........................ ........................11

A sample letter inviting students to apply A sample letter inviting students to apply 
for a newly established Youth Councilfor a newly established Youth Council ............... ...............13

A Mayor’s Youth Council application formA Mayor’s Youth Council application form
from the City of West Palm Beachfrom the City of West Palm Beach ..................... .....................14

A sample Oath of Office for new membersA sample Oath of Office for new members
of your Youth Councilof your Youth Council ........................................ ........................................17

Destin Youth Council By-LawsDestin Youth Council By-Laws ............................ ............................18

Destin Youth Council Mission StatementDestin Youth Council Mission Statement ........... ...........22

215



4

I.   What is a youth council?I.   What is a youth council?
A youth council is an advisory body composed of local youth (usually high-
school aged). They provide advice and counsel to the local governing 
body and its affiliated advisory and regulatory boards, as well as other 
community organizations. Additionally, youth councils can implement and 
participate in a variety of youth-identified community initiatives.

II.   Why create a youth council?II.   Why create a youth council?
According to the Census Bureau, 24.6 percent of the U.S. population is 
under the age of 18. It goes without saying that young people are the 
future of our communities. Therefore, it is vitally important that they are 
vested with the knowledge, skills and abilities to be the next generation 
of local leaders. Youth councils are an excellent means of doing so be-
cause they promote regular and active civic engagement among youth.

Youth councils promote civic engagement among youth by:

and learn how local government operates

and among youth themselves

III. Who benefits?III. Who benefits?
Youth councils enable young people to:

them

community
  

Youth councils enable local councils/commissioners to:

progressive perspective

process

 
North 

Carolina Civic Education Consortium. Some slight modifications have 
been made for League members. Special thanks to the consortium for 
providing a template for this document. For more information on the 
consortium and its other resources, please visit http://www.sog.unc.edu/
programs/civiced/index.php.

216



5

IV. Is your city ready for a youth council?IV. Is your city ready for a youth council?
The following three components serve as positive indicators that your 
city is poised to establish a local youth council:

Concern: Local leaders recognize some degree of need for youth 
insight in public decision making
Trust: Local leaders envision youth in a meaningful, visible and 
advisory role
Change: Local leaders are willing to modify existing codes or 
adopt specific ordinances to promote youth involvement on 
councils, boards and commissions

V. Who creates and oversees the youth council?V. Who creates and oversees the youth council?
It is up to the governing body to decide exactly who will create and 
oversee the youth council. In some communities, a Cooperative 

the youth council. In others, a local department (such as parks and 
recreation) is given the task. In others still, a full-time city employee (such 
as the public information officer or assistant city manager) is vested with 
the task as part of his or her job responsibilities. Whatever the governing 

funding various initiatives. 

The important thing to keep in mind is that the primary purpose of the 
youth council is to advise local government officials. Therefore, it is 
important that the council is truly viewed as an essential part of the local 
government structure, and not simply relegated off to the side to one 
department or extension. 

VI. Who serves on the youth council?VI. Who serves on the youth council?
When thinking about the composition of the student component of a 
youth council, the following should be considered:

local high schools (grades 9-12)

of unexcused school absences. (It is important to realize that 

attendance rates that would benefit most from being selected 
for the youth council. Along the same lines, the city may benefit 

achievers.) 

If your city plans on recruiting through the schools, make sure you 
consider that not all students in the school district live inside the 
city limits. The important thing is that you are recruiting from a 
variety of geographic areas within your city.

217



6

record of leadership, goal-setting, commitment to community 
service and community values, and who want to create positive 
opportunities for other youth in the community

existence 

do not simply select all student government presidents

VII. How do you establish a youth council?VII. How do you establish a youth council?
A. Make it official: First and foremost, a locality should adopt a 

resolution or ordinance that establishes a youth council. The 

following:

there be from each school? From each grade level?)

will make the final selection of members?)

privileges

scope of work 

**See Appendix 1 for an example an ordinance establishing a youth 
council.

B.  Invest in the youth council: Align your youth council with the 

C. Connect, publicize, recruit: 
 Work with parents and schools to publicize the program: 

and goals of the youth council, the application and selection 

**See Appendix 2 for an example of a parent letter
**See Appendix 3 for an example of a youth council 
application form

information about the purpose and importance of youth 
councils and details on applying for the local youth council

for the youth council

218



7

person can discuss specifics with potential candidates

offices

sports teams, etc. 

record store, athletic fields, etc.

make a short plug on air 

Make decisions: Thoroughly evaluate applicants in a competitive 
process. You may wish to hold interviews, either in person or over 
the phone, to narrow down prospective candidates. You may 
also want to have a small committee of people, including youth, 
evaluate the final applicants. 

return to schools to acknowledge the selected members, send 

Additionally, the decision should be honored through a formal 

Likewise, a polite letter should be sent to all applicants who were 
not selected, encouraging them to apply again in the future.

VIII. Now what?VIII. Now what?
First Meeting – Orientation 

youth council as a safe, fun forum that members will look forward to 

more about each other and the youth council liaison. In order to do 

team-building exercises.

The orientation meeting also should have an informational component 
where members learn more about the specific purpose and mission 

219



8

to contribute their own ideas regarding the purpose, mission and 

for future meetings.

Second Meeting – Swearing In of Council Members
After the orientation meeting, youth council members should be 

At the meeting, the youth council should be welcomed as an official 
advisory board and youth council members should be sworn in by the 
local government officials (youth council facilitators will need to get this 
on the meeting agenda in advance).
**See Appendix 4 for an example of a youth council oath of office

Third Meeting – Team Building and Bylaws
The next youth council meeting should begin with some additional 
icebreaker and team-building exercises, followed by member creation of 

topics when discussing and codifying the bylaws:

additional representative capacities such as voting seats on 
advisory boards)

of meetings)
�

governing body to attend this meeting and present 
a workshop regarding parliamentary authority as 
it pertains to meetings in your local government. 
Students can use what they learn to establish their own 
procedures based on the actual city council procedures 

order to conduct the business of a meeting)

**See Appendix 5 for example of youth council bylaws and 
procedural guidelines.
**See Appendix 6 for example of a mission statement.

220



9

Fourth Meeting – Additional Team Building and Action Plan

with council members issues they want to address and goals they wish 
to accomplish as a council throughout the year. Use the information 

future meetings. You will then be able to coordinate activities and 
guest speakers accordingly. For example, if students are interested in 
discussing the issues of teen drug and alcohol use or gang violence in 
schools, you can schedule a law enforcement officer specializing in one 

if students express interest in the locality funding the development of a 

local developer to discuss implications and costs to the locality. 
  
IX. What should the youth council do?IX. What should the youth council do?
Aside from advising local government officials, youth councils can 
implement and participate in a variety of activities. Some of these 
activities may include:

topics of concern for youths
�

a format for student lead youth forums; information 
is available at http://www.nasc.us/s_nasc/sec.
asp?CID=1266&DID=55678

�

a Community Forum Toolkit that can be tailored for 
youth council use. It is available at http://www.civics.
unc.edu/civicindex/aboutforums.htm 

�

� Senior center volunteering
�

�

supplies, holiday gifts, etc.)
� Adopt-a-pet
�

a youth identified issue of concern (i.e. water conservation; 

to be aired on local public access channel

221



10

local youth (for example, building a skate park or athletic field)

heads

schools

school announcements

member should be present at each meeting and report back 
to the youth council on topics covered)

information to local youth

goal setting, public speaking, etc.

order to represent youth perspective 

For additional ideas, go to http://www.nasc.us/s_nasc/sec.
asp?CID=164&DID=5356. While these ideas are tailored to 

the communitywide level with your youth council.
 

222



11

Appendix I.Appendix I.

An ordinance from the City of Dade City creating the city’s Youth Council.

ARTICLE IV. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS*

DIVISION 2. CITY YOUTH COUNCIL

Sec. 2-171. Creation.
There is created a board to be known as the city youth council, which shall 
consist of five members plus two alternates from high school and one alternate 
from middle school (eighth grade only). The members will be city residents who 
are actively enrolled in a public or private high school in grades nine through 
12. The members shall be appointed by the city commission and each member 
appointed shall serve a term of two years, unless grade 12 is completed during 

members appointed to the first board, three shall serve for a term of two years 
and two shall serve for a term of one year. The two high school alternates 
and the eighth grade alternate shall be appointed by the city commission for 
a one-year term annually. Unlike other boards, the term of the members of 
the city youth council will expire and be appointed in April of each year. The 
commissioners will attend board meetings and, along with city staff, coordinate 
activities. 

Sec. 2-172. Election of officers.
The city youth council shall elect a chairman to conduct meetings and a vice-

be held at the first regular meeting after annual appointments are made by the 
city commission.

Sec. 2-173. Vacancies.
Irregular vacancies on the city youth council shall be filled as they occur and 
regular vacancies shall be filled by appointment in April of each year.

Sec. 2-174. Meetings; records.

meetings shall be kept by the office of the city clerk. All meetings shall be 

Sec. 2-175. Absences from meetings.
Absences from three consecutive regular meetings of the city youth council 
shall cause a member to be removed from their seat, unless such absence is 

223



12

excused by a majority vote of the board, with such excuse duly entered upon 
its minutes.

Sec. 2-176. Duties and responsibilities.
The city youth council shall have the duty and responsibility to:

(2) Facilitate neighborhood meetings with youth to discuss problems, needs, 
suggested improvements for our community.

discuss issues, concerns, and needed improvements.
(4) Attend city commission meetings and participate in vision and goal sessions.

manager of public projects and programs.

forwarded to the city youth council for advice.

 

224



13

Appendix 2.Appendix 2.

A sample letter inviting students to apply for a newly established Youth 
Council.*

The City of ________ is proud to announce a new and exciting opportunity for 
 Youth Council will provide our 

youth an opportunity to increase their knowledge of civic education through 

12th grade students who will be charged with representing youth in the City of 
______________.

The Youth Council will:

and committees;

Youth Council members will be selected through a competitive application 
process. An ideal Youth Council will be composed of a diverse group of young 

will be a demonstration that the young person wants to make a difference here 

Seventeen of the Youth Council members will be voting members from the 
9th - 12th grades, and three will be non-voting Youth Council apprentices from 
the 8th grade. These 8th grade members will take part in all Council activities 
and learn the role of a Council member so that they can assume the role 

meetings.

We will be distributing Youth Council applications through the schools in early 
August, when the students return to school. Applications will be due in ____, 

your rising 8th grader or high school student and encourage them to apply for 
service on the Youth Council.

Sincerely,

has been modified for League members. 

225



14

Appendix 3.Appendix 3.

A Mayor’s Youth Council application form from the City of West Palm Beach.

City of __________
Mayor’s Youth Council Application

to personal development and servant leadership. If you are interested in 
applying for membership to the council, please complete the following 

sheets if necessary: ALL information must be completed in order to be 

 _______________________________________ Age: ________________

School: _____________________________________  ________________

 ________________________________ Zip: ________________

Telephone: ______________________________  ________________

 ____________________________________________________________

 ___________________________________________________

 _______________________________________________

The City of ___________ does not discriminate based on race, ethnicity, sex, 
creed, national origin or disability. This information need not be provided. It 

 _________________________
 

_____ I initiated my interest in this program.
_____ I was asked to apply for this position.

By whom? ____________________________  ___________________

______________________________________________________

226



15

to add a sheet of paper)

_____________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________

What are the three most important issues to you, your friends and your family 
concerning your neighborhood?
1. ____________________________________________________________________

2. ____________________________________________________________________

Include employment, sports, community, school and religious groups.

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________
What personal skills and characteristics do you possess that would make you a 
good representative?

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

If you could bring one thing to this city or change one thing, what would it be?

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

Are you willing to attend the meetings, events and activities of the Youth 
Council for one year and commit to making a difference in our city? 

Are you interested in community service points for this project? 

also attach letters of recommendation from these individuals. The letters must 

your school principal or other school based personnel and one letter from a 
community member who is familiar with you.

227



16

1. __________________________________________________________________

2. __________________________________________________________________

I have read and understand the commitment required for the Mayor’s Youth 
Council. I also realize the importance of teamwork and cooperation and I am 
willing to make this commitment.

Student Signature: _______________________  ______________________

________________________ to seek the position of representative on the 

 _________________________________________

 _______________________________________________________________

 _______________________________________ 

 _____________________________________________

 ___________________

 ___________________________________________________

 ______________________________________________________

Thank You!

228



17

Appendix 4Appendix 4

The following is a sample Oath of Office for new members of your Youth 
Council.

_________ Youth Council

Florida

I, ________________________, do solemnly swear that I will support, 

uphold and defend the Constitution of the United States of America, and 

the laws thereof; that I will support, uphold and defend the Constitution 

and laws of the State of Florida, not inconsistent therewith, that I will 

observe and obey the laws and ordinances of the City of _______, Florida; 

that I will faithfully perform and discharge the duties incumbent upon me 

as member of the _______ YOUTH COUNCIL fairly and honestly and to 

 

229



18

Appendix 5.Appendix 5.

Destin Youth Council By-Laws

ARTICLE I
MEMBERSHIP
Section 1 – Representation

Section 2 – Membership Qualifications

Section 3 – Term Limits
Terms shall be for one year, or until the student transfers or graduates from 

Section 4 – Application Process

process. Interested parties shall complete a simple application form. The 

Section 5 – Appointment of Members

Section 6 – Conduct

positive, friendly and law-abiding manner at all times. There will be no smoking, 
drinking alcoholic beverages or using illegal drugs by any member of the Youth 
Council. Such behavior will not be tolerated and is ground for dismissal from 
the Youth Council.

ARTICLE II

OFFICES
Section 1 – Offices
The City Clerk shall serve as temporary chair for purposes of presiding over the 

is elected.

230



19

Section 2 – Officer Duties
The duties of the officers shall be as follows:

and shall be charged with the administration of the affairs of the Youth 

shall perform such other duties as provided by these by-laws or by rule of 

the power of the Chair during the absence of the Chair.

to the City Clerk. The Secretary shall conduct the roll call at the start of 

Youth Council and perform the duties and exercise the power of the Chair 

Section 3 – Election of Officers
The officers of the Youth Council shall be elected annually. The officers of 
the Youth Council shall be elected by a majority vote of the voting members 
present.

Section 4 – Term of Officers
The term of all offices provided for in Section one hereof shall be for one year; 
however that all officers shall continue to hold office until their successors are 

Section 5 – Vacancies of Officers

removal or by some other reason, the office shall be filled by an election for the 

ARTICLE III

MEETINGS
Section 1 – Regular Meetings

Robert’s Rules of Order shall govern the proceedings of the Youth Council in 
all cases to which they are applicable, and in which they are not inconsistent 

presented only at Youth Council meetings. Before convening a meeting of the 

the City Clerk of the subject matter of the meeting.

231



20

Section 2 – Special Meetings

for special meetings shall be sent via electronic mail, or by telephone, to the 
office of the City Clerk at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting. This 

notice shall be considered at the special meeting.

Section 3 – Open Meetings

Section 4 – Quorum

Section 5 – Voting
The affirmative vote of a majority of the members present shall be necessary to 

Section 6 – Order of Business
The Chairperson of the Youth Council shall, when present, call the members 
of the Youth Council to order. Before proceedings to business, the roll of the 
members shall be called, and the names of those present (and absent) entered 

b.  Approval of the minutes of the previous meeting.
c.  Unfinished business.

e.  Announcements.
f.   Adjournment.

Section 7 – Recordings of Meetings
The proceedings of the Youth Council shall be recorded by the City Clerk. 

Section 8 – Conduct of Members

meeting by leaving his or her seat or engaging in unnecessary conversation. 
Any member guilty of any unprofessional conduct shall be reported to the 

232



21

Section 9 – Attendance
Attendance at regular Youth Council meetings is expected from all members. 
If a member cannot attend due to sickness or for a duly authorized reason, the 

name when the roll is called at any regular meeting or special meeting shall be 

Council who missed three consecutive meetings (excused or unexcused) shall 

ARTICLE IV

REPORTS
Section 1 – Annual Report to the Destin City Council

Council of the activities and business of the Youth Council at least once each 
calendar year.

ARTICLE V

ROLE OF THE DESTIN CITY COUNCIL
Section 1 – Role of City Council

Youth Council to assist them in carrying out their duties. The City Council 

respond accordingly.

ARTICLE VI

BY-LAWS AND AMENDMENTS

Section 1 – By-Laws and Amendments
The by-laws of the Youth Council shall be reviewed once each year. The by-
laws may be amended at a regular stated meeting provided two-thirds of the 
members of the Youth Council approve the amendment in a roll call vote; 
providing further that the amendment is part of the agenda for the meeting 
and the membership has been notified in writing. By-laws and amendments 

 

233



22

Appendix 6.Appendix 6.

Destin Youth Council Mission Statement

Mission Statement
Destin Youth Council

decision-making process, through recommendations to the City Council 
that address youth issues, promote existing positive programs, and develop 

thereby promoting and encouraging the youth to become effective leaders in 

234



23 235



236



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Request concerning Junior Bowling Olympian.  
  

237



 
 

 

238



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Apopka Youth Works Program Stats.    Glenn A. Irby 
  

239



 

AYW Program Stats 

 AYW 2015 AYW 2016 
City Contribution 

 
$30,640 $50,000 

CareerSource Contribution 
 

$56,273 $178,696 

 
Applications Received 

55 113 

 
Students Accepted 

32 75 

Students Completed 
Program 

32 74 

 
Students hired/offered 

positions after AYW 

6 7 

 
Businesses Recruited 

14 22 

 
New Businesses 

* 7 

Businesses that 
participated 

13 16 

 

240



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Thank you letter from Wheatley Elementary for the supplies received from the Apopka School Supply Drive.  
  

241



 

 242


	Top
	1. 09-07-16 - CC - Approval of Minutes - 07.19.16 Budget Workshop
	07-19-16 Budget WS Draft.pdf

	2. 09-07-16 - CC - Approval of Minutes - 07-20-16 Budget Workshop
	07-20-16 Budget WS.pdf

	3. 09-07-16 - CC - Approval of Minutes - 08-17-16 City Council Mtg.
	08-17-16 draft.pdf

	1. 09-07-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Approve Ranking/Authorize Negotiation for LDC Update
	1 RFQ 2016-10 -LDC Update - Staff Report - Negotiate-CC 9-7-16.pdf
	2 LDC RFQ Ranking Sheets.pdf

	2. 09-07-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Door to Door Solicitor Application
	1 Andrus Albi - EH Engelmeier Roofing - Door to Door Solicitation - CC - 09-07-16.pdf
	2 Andrus Albi - Solicitor Application.pdf

	1. 09-07-16 - CC - Business - Marden RD Amendment
	Glenn - Marden Road Cost Share Agreement Amendment I.pdf
	Glenn - Marden Road Cost Share Agreement Amendment I [Final].pdf

	2. 09-07-16 - CC - Business (Action Item) - PDP - Binion Reserve Sub
	1 Binion Reserve PDP - CC 09-07-16.pdf
	2 Binion Reserve - Full Preliminary Development Plan.pdf
	3 Landscape Plan.pdf

	3. 09-07-16 - CC - Business (Action Item) - Redevelopment/Final Development Plan - Piedmont Plaza
	1 Piedmont Plaza-Major Development Plan CC 09-7-16.pdf
	2 Piedmont Plaza Demolition Plan.pdf
	3 Piedmont Plaza FDP Site Plan.pdf
	3a Piedmont Wekiva Entrance Re-Design.pdf
	4 Piedmont Plaza Landscape Plan.pdf
	5 Piedmont Plaza Elevations.pdf
	6 Piedmont Plaza Parking Study.pdf
	7 Piedmont Plaza Traffic Study.pdf
	8 LDC 06 07 00 - Hardship Waiver.pdf
	9 Piedmont Plaza Waiver Request Response.pdf

	1. 09-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2513 - 1st Rd - Annexation
	1 Ord 2513 - CFXA 1st Rd.pdf
	2 - 2016 Annexation Cycle 3- Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2513 - CFXA.pdf

	2. 09-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2514 - 1st Rd - Annexation
	1 Ord 2514 - Kohl- 1st Rd.pdf
	2 - 2016 Annexation Cycle 3- Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2514 - Kohl.pdf

	3. 09-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2515 - 1st Rd - Annexation
	1 Ord 2515 - Nelson- 1st Rd.pdf
	2 - 2016 Annexation Cycle 3- Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2515 - Nelson.pdf

	4. 09-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2516 - 1st Rd - Annexation
	1 Ord 2516-Cook - 1st Rd.pdf
	2 - 2016 Annexation Cycle 3- Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2516 - Cook.pdf

	5. 09-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2517 - 1st Rd - Annexation
	1 Ord 2517-Verduzco - 1st Rd.pdf
	2 - 2016 Annexation Cycle 3- Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2517 - Verduzco.pdf

	6. 09-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2503 - 1st Rd - LDC - ExParte Contact
	1 LDC Amendment - Ex parte - CC 09-07-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2503 Ex Parte Communications Rev.pdf

	7. 09-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2504 - 1st Rd - LDC - Building Heights
	1 - LDC Amendment - Building Height - CC 09-07-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 - Ord No 2504 - LDC Amendment - Building Height.pdf

	8. 09-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2509 - 1st Rd - COO, Ch. 62 - Peddlers and Solicitors
	1 COO Ch 62 - Peddlers &amp; Solicitors staff rpt CC 09-07-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2509 - Ch 62 - Peddlers &amp; Solicitors.pdf

	9. 09-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2510 - 1st Rd - COO, Ch. 74, Sec. 74-104 - Vehicle for Hire
	1 Ch 74 - Business Tax Receipt - VFH - CC 09-07-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord No 2510 - BTR - Vehicles for Hire.pdf

	10. 09-07-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2511 - 1st Rd - COO, Ch. 86 - Vehicle for Hire
	1 COO Ch 86 - Vehicle for Hire staff rpt CC 09-07-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord No 2511  - Vehicles for Hire - FINAL.pdf

	1. 09-07-16 - CC - City Council Reports - Youth Council Proposal
	Commissioner Becker - Apopka Youth Council Letter.pdf
	Commissioner Becker - Apopka Youth Council - FLC Youth Council Guide.pdf

	1. 09-07-16 - CC - Mayors Report - Bowling Olympian
	Junior Bowling Olympian.pdf

	1. 09-07-16 - CC - NOT REQUIRING ACTION - AYW Stats
	Skakenya - AYW Program Stats.pdf

	2. 09-07-16 - CC - NOT REQUIRING ACTION - Wheatley Elementary Thank You
	Shakenya - Wheatley Elementary Thank You Letter.pdf

	Bottom

